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Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating access to best practice health, aged and 
community based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

Our Mission

Caring for Rural Communities.

Hesse Rural Health (Hesse) is a public health service, operating under the Health Services 
Act 1988 and governed by a volunteer Board of Management who are appointed by the 
Victorian State Minister for Health. Hesse is a key integrated rural health care service providing 
acute, aged and community based services across parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, 
Golden Plains and the Surf Coast Shires.

Hesse operates in partnership with the Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a 
not for profit entity whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop rural aged care services 
for the local community.

Our Vision

Hesse Rural Health

Inclusiveness  ~ Welcoming Everyone
Integrity  ~ Accountable, Transparent Practice
Excellence  ~ Committed to Being the Best We Can
Creativity  ~ Leading into the Future
Person Centred  ~ Finding What’s Important to the Individual

Our Values

Acute Care
Breakfast Club
Bus to the Hub
Community Nursing
Dementia Care
Diabetes Education
Dietetics
District Nursing
Exercise Groups
Facilitated Play Group
Farm Safety Program
Greet, Eat & Meet
Health Promotion

Home Care Packages
Hospital in the Home
Immunisation Program
Men’s Group
Men’s Shed Program
Nesters Group
No Fall Exercise Program
Occasional Care
Occupational Therapy
Palliative Care
Personal Development
Physiotherapy
Planned Activity Groups 

Podiatry
Post Acute Care
Post Natal Care
Pre-School Health 
Residential Aged Care 
Respite
Urgent Care
Volunteering
Walking Groups
Well Women’s Clinic
Yoga

To access Hesse’s broad range of
services contact Administration via:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200
Mail:      8 Gosney Street
     Winchelsea VIC 3241
E-mail:    hesse@swarh.vic.gov.au
Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

Our Services Contact Us
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and Chief Executive
From the Chair

John Carr, Chair, and Peter Birkett, CEO, with guest AGM presenter Prof. Daryl Pedler.

There has been a sharper focus on 
quality systems in Victorian health 
services following recent adverse 
patient outcomes in a regional health 
service. These issues naturally attract 
attention and an inevitable pressure to 
change processes. While it is  tempting 
to attribute negative outcomes to 
quality system monitoring failures, it is 
our belief that accreditation  systems 
play an important and positive role in 
ensuring standards remain high and an 
objective of continuous improvement is 
maintained. External review at a planned 
or as an unannounced event maintains 
rigour and vigilance at the patient care, 
management and board governance 
level.

The logic of increasing compliance 
requirements to ensure quality service 
delivery is often heralded as an answer 
but is seldom a total ongoing solution 
and fails to recognise resource shifting 
away from client care, and also in our 
case, the importance of the small rural 
integrated health service context. 

On this backdrop, Hesse has managed 
to advance its vision for a single 
quality review mechanism that will 
simultaneously monitor the interrelated 
services offered by our small rural health 
service, both State and Commonwealth 
funded, including acute, aged and 
primary care services. 

An exciting partnership we formed with 
the Australian Council on Healthcare 
Standards (ACHS) and Australian Aged 
Care Quality Agency (AACQA) aims 
to test a joint quality review approach. 
Sharing the common thread of long term 
community, executive and board level 
knowledge in integrated rural service 
delivery, West Wimmera Health Service 
joined with Hesse as independent pilot 
sites. The project has attracted strong 
interest from other rural services similarly 
keen to return administrative quality 

resources to client care.  

Taking rural health care forward has 
also seen us drive a significant project 
in aged care governance, hosting the 
Business of Aged Care initiative. The 
project became an opportunity to work 
with Board Directors of 11 rural health 
services in South West Victoria to 
unravel the Commonwealth reforms in 
Aged Care pivoting on consumer choice,  
market awareness, consumer behaviour, 
pricing structures and commercial 
responsiveness, and lifting the profile of 
aged care within the Board agenda.

To better understand how to ensure 
older people can thrive in their transition 
into residential aged care Hesse is 
participating in an 18 month international 
research and education collaboration 
with La Trobe University, University of 
Oslo (Norway) and Umea University 
(Sweden). Hesse and Cobden Rural 
Health were invited as intervention and 
control sites respectively. This project 
aligns nicely with Hesse’s stated value of 
person centred care.  

These three projects add to the growing 
list of things that Hesse has done to lead 

improvements in the public health sector.
Other more local collaborations include 
the CEO and Board Chair representation 
with other sub-regional services in the 
Polwarth Partnership. The initial intent is 
to resource a Director of Medical Services 
jointly shared between the services 
to ensure credentialing oversight and 
clinical review. Other projects will be 
progressed to benefit the sustainability 
of the participating health services.

From the financial perspective the 
organisation has performed well once 
again resulting in a pre-depreciation 
surplus with a strengthening cash 
position, but funding for capital projects 
continues to present a challenge. Our 
partnership and co-location with the 
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home 
Society Inc. has enabled past service 
development opportunities and will 
undoubtedly continue to be a part of 
ongoing solutions. 

While viability in public rural residential 
aged care remains an issue in some 
communities, Hesse’s demand remains 
solid. A successful submission in the 
latest Aged Care Application Round 
(ACAR) has resulted in an additional 



In closing, we wish to recognise 
the significant efforts of volunteers, 
staff and management as their work 
practices reflect our combined values 
of inclusiveness, integrity, excellence, 
creativity and person centredness.

An organisation should be judged, not 
only on its outcomes in budgeting, patient 
care, community satisfaction and safe 
quality systems, but also on its ability 
to innovate in the sector and take rural 
health services forward into the future. 

This is our Hesse Rural Health. 
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John Carr
President

Peter Birkett
Chief Executive

five aged care bed licenses from the 
Commonwealth. We are developing 
plans to make those beds operational, 
but must consider extra office space as 
a parallel priority.

Around the Board table we welcomed 
Naida Hutton in July and later Suzanne 
Lewis. Their individual skills are a valued 
addition. Unfortunately we farewelled 
Noel Stinchcombe at the end of June 
after 15 years of dedicated service. His 
sound judgements will be sorely missed.

Client contacts in Primary Care have 
increased through the extensive 
community development and health 
promotion initiatives in Rokewood, 
Winchelsea and Beeac communities.  
These were informed by well researched 
health demographics and expressed 
community need. Commencing a Nurse 
Practitioner service was the result of a 

four year strategic objective, and initial 
demand has been pleasing. 

Exceptional community support has 
continued from local service groups and 
in particular the Hospital Auxiliary and 
Lions Club. The Op Shop retail outlet 
continues to impress, raising $373,000 
in the 5 years since opening, and 
remarkably Auxiliary enthusiasm has not 
diminished. Community participation and 
involvement extends further with valued 
input from the resident carers group and 
the active Consumer and Community 
Advisory Committee.

The gardens at the Winchelsea campus 
are a continuing source of comment and 
compliment from patients, relatives and 
visitors and do much to enhance the 
amenity and ambience of the Gosney 
Street site. They are our positive point of 
difference.



Our Organisational Structure

Minister for Health
Hon. Jill Hennessy MP

Chief Executive Officer

Peter Birkett 
MBA, BCom,
RM, RN,
ACHSE, MAICD

Quality

Ethics

Finance

Audit

District Nursing
Allied Health
Health Promotion
Planned Activity Groups
Home Care Packages
Domiciliary Midwifery
Quality Coordination

Manager Community Services

Josie Gebert 
RM, RN

Acute & Urgent Care
Dementia Services
Residential Aged Care
Palliative Care
Respite Services

Director of Care

Annie Coles
BNurs, GDipMid, DipComServ(Childcare), 
GDipNurs(Fam&ChildHealth), MACN

Suzanne Lewis
Quality & Ethics
BHlthSc(Hons)

Board of Management

John Carr
President:
Financial Resources 
& Audit, Medical

Keith Leigh
Treasurer:
Financial Resources 
& Audit             

Kathy Taylor
Senior Vice President:
Financial Resources
& Audit 
(BBus, GDipOHM)

Paul Benton
Financial Resources 
& Audit
DCR(R)(UK), GDMU

David Kelly
Junior Vice President:
Quality & Ethics

Donald Lang
Chair, Quality & Ethics
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Andrea Dunlop
MHlthSc, GDipHlthSc, BAppSc, 
(OT), ACHSE

Human Resources
Business Compliance
Community Liaison
Project Development
Consumer Participation
Administration

Manager Workforce & 
Service Development

Suzanne Lewis
Quality & Ethics
BHlthSc(Hons)

Naida Hutton
Quality & Ethics
(BEd,GDipHRIRM,
RM, RN, GAICD)

Paul Benton
Financial Resources 
& Audit
DCR(R)(UK), GDMU

Rod Hanson
Financial Resources 
& Audit, Medical

Noel Stinchcombe
Financial Resources 
& Audit

Michelle Stocks
Quality & Ethics

Active leadership, guidance 
and oversight provided by 
Hesse’s volunteer Board of 
Management ensures the 
delivery of safe quality health 
care through effective risk 
management, regulatory 
compliance, resource 
management and strategy 
formulation, considerate 
of the broader health care 
environment.
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Our Strategic Directions
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Achieving Excellence
and Innovation

Hesse will build upon a culture of safety, quality and 
continuous improvement in the drive for service excellence 
and innovation.

The development and maintenance of a brand recognising 
expertise in dementia care environments, definition of a 
humanistic model of rural dementia care and provision 

of best practice palliative care and other evidence-based 
clinical approaches. 

Effective
Service Promotion

To be a relevant health service to our catchment community 
Hesse will ensure that the public are aware of what the 
organisation can offer.

The development of an organisational marketing strategy 
that includes achievements within dementia care, more 

effective use of volunteers as marketing ambassadors and 
the creation of social media strategies for new

market opportunities.

Our Community
is the Key

Hesse respects the important role it plays for our rural 
community and individuals residing within it to facilitate 
effective participation.

Expansion in the contribution and recognition of volunteers, 
an effective consumer engagement program, broadened 

Board knowledge on clinical and corporate governance and 
progression towards the development of a dementia 

friendly community.

Accessible and Relevant Health Services
Throughout the Lifespan

Services provided will be available throughout the lifespan, 
based upon evidence of needs with clear and accessible 
pathways facilitating effective links to the services consumers 
require.

The development of a youth health plan, implementation 
of the rural nurse practitioner program, introduction of 

community dental services, service expansion under the 
NDIS and to become known as a supportive point

of first contact for our rural consumers to navigate the 
broader health system.

A Skilled and
Engaged Workforce

Hesse understands that investing in employees and volunteer 
workforce will ensure they remain skilled, satisfied and 
meaningfully engaged to deliver effective services enabling 
the organisation to remain a respected employer of choice.

The facilitation of staff engagement for a culture of 
workplace commitment, development of recruitment and 
retention strategies, best practice models of urgent care 

services  and the promotion of organisation-wide effective 
customer service and client-centered practice.

 A Sustainable
Business Culture

Our health service must sustain financial practices and 
strategies that are based upon sound, ethical and innovative 
business principles to ensure we remain viable into the future.

A focus on a robust business model for the sustainability 
of aged services, identification of fundraising opportunities, 

better business practices for consumer purchased
care and reviewed application of 

information technology.
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Integrating Health
and Wellbeing

Incorporating health promotion, prevention and early 
intervention concepts, standards and values into health 
service delivery will benefit consumers, our staff and the 
broader community.

A targeted approach to improving men’s health and 
wellness, expansion of our unique Farm Safety Program 

and a review of overall approaches to health promotion for 
better models of service delivery .

Infrastructure Growth
and Development

Hesse is responsive to the changing community profile and 
demand for services considering immediate, short and long 
term needs for infrastructure, growth and development.

The development of a long day child care facility for the 
Winchelsea community, increase residential aged care 

infrastructure, examine the feasibility of independent living 
units and redraft a Master Plan for the future development 

of the Winchelsea campus.

Partnering
for Success

Hesse recognises that collaboration, shared skills and the 
formation of strategic alliances with compatible organisations 
and stakeholders is required for the organisation to be 
efficient, effective and successful.

To continue our relationship with the Winchelsea Community 
Bank, in addition to partnerships with academic institutions 
for research, development  and evaluation of best practice 

initiatives and collaborations with other rural health services 
and agencies outside the public health sector for alternative 

approaches to service delivery.

Operating on a five year 
horizon, the Strategic 
Plan 2015-2019 is geared 
towards ensuring 
clinical safety and 
quality, organisational 
development and growth 
to meet the expressed 
health care needs of the 
community. 



Under the Spotlight

• Consumer and Community Advisory 
Committee sponsor a Health & 
Wellbeing Award at the 2015 
Winchelsea Uniting Church Art & 
Photography Show

• Hesse hosts the Competitive Edge 
Board Governance Seminar

• My Dog Has Stripes men’s health 
performance, October 2015

• International research collaboration 
on Thriving and Person Centred 
Care with La Trobe University, 
Melbourne, Umea University, 
Sweden, and University of Oslo, 
Norway

• Successful application for five 
additional aged care bed licenses 

• Fortnightly Facilitated Children’s 
Play Program commences in 
Rokewood

• No Falls Program commenced in 
Beeac and Inverleigh 

• Successful Home Care Packages 
Quality Review

• Bus to the Hub social meals 
program transitioned to a Hesse 
Planned Activity Program

• Department of Health & Human 
Services grant of $240,000 for 
significant aged care refurbishment

 
• Successful accreditation outcome 

from the Aged Care Accreditation 
Standards quality review

• Promoting Hesse’s services via 
electronic media and YouTube

• Aged care resident survey 
demonstrates high levels of 
satisfaction

• Certificate presentation from 
Christine Dennis, CEO of Australian 
Council on Healthcare Standards 
(ACHS) following Hesse’s 
successful 2015 Organisation Wide 
Survey

• Staff supported to undertake 
Certificate IV in Commercial 
Cookery

• Residential care environmental 
and design audit of WH&NHS Inc 
conducted by Defiddes Design

• Auxiliary Op Shop raises $75,000 
lifting total earnings to $373,000 
over five years

• Regional Business of Aged Care 
Project concludes with successful 
outcomes for better business 
governance

• Hesse joins sub-regional health 
services in the formation of the 
Polwarth Planning Partnership

• Nurse Practitioner Services 
commenced in Rokewood

• Hesse selected as a pilot agency 
to trial a joint national accreditation 
program with ACHS and AACQA

• Current Asset Ratio exceeds 0.63

• Telehealth installed to link rural 
consumers to specialist care in the 
urgent care setting

• Lions Club donates $15,000 for 
aged care room conversion

• Development of Human Resources 
Framework

• Growth in HACC funding of $60,000
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Hesse Rural Health understands that 
in order to be a successful organisation 
that delivers ‘best practice health, aged 
and community based services’, as 
outlined in our Mission, the efforts of all 
employees should be acknowledged and 
supported to ensure a workforce that is 
skilled, capable and satisfied. 

Hesse’s approach to achieving this is 
outlined within the new organisational 
Human Resources and Workforce 
Planning Framework. Andrea Dunlop, 
Manager Workforce & Service 
Development, says ‘the Framework 
was needed to demonstrate how  
various human resource and workforce 
processes align and intersect with other 
key organisational systems and plans, 
such as the Strategic Plan’.

Providing opportunities for ongoing 
learning and development is a critical 
aspect. Examples this year have 
included: on-site training for two 
catering staff to complete a Certificate 
IV in Commercial Cookery; two Personal 
Care Workers supported to complete a 
Diploma of Nursing and since appointed 
to enrolled nursing positions; and an 
administration staff member who was 
supported to complete a Bachelor of 
Commerce (Accounting & Finance).

A Framework for Learning

Increasing quality compliance makes  it 
challenging to keep annual mandatory 
training programs stimulating but the 
revised twice yearly whole of organisation 
workshop style approach with featured 
programs helps to add variety.

Diversity and Inclusion was a featured 
program in October 2015 and staff met 
Thomas Banks, a young local man with 
cerebral palsy who described the barriers 
and discrimination he often faces living 
with a disability. His light-hearted and 
entertaining approach (with music and 
dancing) challenged us to look for ways 
to make Hesse an inclusive organisation.

Katie Burt from Pulse CPR provided 
the direct care staff with a positive and 
dynamic training session on basic life 
support. Her ‘just get in and have a 
go’ approach renewed enthusiasm for 
intervening in life threatening situations.  
After Katie’s session one registered nurse 
reflected, ‘in my 52 years of nursing this 
is the first time I have felt  really confident 
to perform CPR’.

A fully catered Christmas party with 
live music and a range of prizes was a 
great way to recognise the effort and 
contribution of the staff at the end of a 
busy year. 

Catering and 
clinical staff 
participating 

in training 
opportunities.
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As a small integrated health service, a 
medium sized business and the largest 
single employer within the towns of our 
rural catchment, Hesse Rural Health 
understands its role in sustaining local 
communities. 

Providing bed-based and community 
health services requires food, linen, 
furniture, stationery, cleaning supplies, 
medical equipment, vehicles, trades, 
information technology, business 
system support and more. Hesse has 
regular service, supply and contractual 
agreements with over 341 businesses 
and of those 53% are located within a 
50km radius.

‘Choosing local’ wherever possible 
and appropriate contributes to the 
maintenance and development of the 
local economy and provides reciprocal 
opportunities to market health service 
availability and improve community 
health literacy. 

As a publicly funded health care 
organisation, Hesse also has a statutory 
obligation to comply with policies from 
Health Purchasing Victoria (HPV) 
designed to achieve State level cost 

efficiencies. Increasing compliance 
requirements by 30th June 2016 
mean Hesse now adheres to tender 
arrangements in place for many ‘in 
scope’ products and services.

While large scale tenders such as 
electricity supply provide welcome 
savings, careful consideration is required 
to ensure indirect community benefits are 
not lost. Factors such as loyalty, service 
quality and community expectation are 
important to recognise in rural areas.

CEO Peter Birkett explains, ‘our patients 
and residents appreciate that we 
continue to use familiar retailers such as 
the local butcher, and that fresh fruit and 
vegetables are also sourced nearby’. 

He also recalls how grateful Hesse was 
some years ago when a local waste 
management company stepped forward 
to provide a routine collection service 
when the larger companies refused to 
pick up from Winchelsea. Peter says, 
‘wherever it is cost effective to do so 
it is important that we support local 
tradespersons and businesses that have 
provided a loyal and reliable service 
as they may one day return to choose 
healthcare services from us’.

Such understanding and recognition 
reflects the spirit of country living and 
helps to strengthen our rural and regional 
communities.

Local Communities
Small Services Sustaining

Suppliers by

Proximity

General

Trade

$952,000 was spent  
on trade and general 
services from 181 
businesses located 
within a 50km radius of 
Winchelsea.

100 km

$5,000 $10,000 $15,000 $20,000

80 km

60 km

40 km

20 km
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Suppliers by

Proximity

Gaining access to much needed health 
care can be frustrating for people living 
in rural areas.  While Hesse Rural Health 
can provide some services to their 
local community, when specialist care 
is required it can be a different matter.  
The barriers presented by higher costs, 
lengthy delays for appointments and 
significant travel time, mean consumers 
may forgo much needed treatment 
putting their health at risk.  

However for people living in our 
catchment this is proving to be a thing 
of the past with Telehealth. Through an 
audio visual link in the Urgent Care room, 
category one and two triaged patients 
presenting to Winchelsea Hospital 
are able to be reviewed by medical 
specialists at Barwon Health. The 
instant access to clinical advice to guide 
treatment decisions could be life saving.

While other video and social network 
messaging platforms such as Skype can 
provide access to health professionals, 
Hesse utilises secure electronic 

to Specialist Care
Linking Rural Consumers 

software ensuring shared patient health 
information meets privacy regulations 
and transmits reliably.  The program is 
already available within Hesse’s District 
Nursing service with iPad devices used 
to link to specialist wound consultant 
advice at Barwon Health. 

Aged care resident Clare recently had 

the opportunity to use the Telehealth 
program to connect with a neurologist 
treating her Parkinson’s symptoms. ‘It 
was really very easy, convenient and 
avoided the rigmarole of getting me 
into Geelong’, she said. Clare was able 
to easily include family members in the 
consultation as well as Hesse nurses, 
who otherwise would not have had the 
opportunity to gain the important clinical 
information first hand. 

Health professionals and corporate 
officers will also benefit from video 
conferencing facilities in the Seminar 
Room, Multi Purpose Room and CEO 
office.  Total costs for implementation 
of the telehealth project for Hesse were 
approximately $25,000. 

With all that saved time, money, 
kilometres and increased care and 
knowledge, that represents pretty good 
value. 
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Christine says she was at home 
‘climbing the walls’ after recovering 
from heart surgery in 2007 when she 
realised something needed to change. 
Unprepared to put her health in further 
jeopardy by returning to a stressful work 
environment, she set out to find a new 
purpose. 

It is approaching ten years since then and 
Christine has not only found that purpose 
but has been a steady set of hands and 
made an enormous contribution through 
her role as a volunteer at Hesse Rural 
Health.

A member of the ‘Gym Group’ at 
Winchelsea Community Health 
and undertaking exercises for her 
own rehabilitation; her journey into 
volunteering began through the support 
she provided other participants during 
class. However it was a ‘cuppa’ that 
enticed her to Winchelsea ADASS 
(Planned Activity Group Program) in 
2008 and where she now volunteers 
on Tuesdays and Thursdays. Christine 
helps to prepare the lunch and with 
activities such as craft and card games. 

On Friday afternoons you will see her at 
Hesse’s residential facilities assisting in 
the Leisure and Lifestyle Program. With 
some ADASS clients eventually moving 
into residential aged care she offers them 

a familiar face to make the transition a 
smooth one.

‘What I love most about volunteering is 
the appreciation you get from the clients 
and residents. They are always so happy 

to see you and I love to sit down and 
have a natter.’

The third aspect to Christine’s 
volunteering is as a Consumer 
Representative and member of the 
Consumer and Community Advisory 
Committee. With her involvement in so 
many of Hesse’s programs, Christine 
offers a valuable perspective to ensure 
services and programs remain person 
centred and relevant.   

Is she satisfied by her role as a volunteer? 
Christine laughs and says, ‘All I ever 
really wanted to be was a Tea Lady and 
now I am’. 

And she looks very comfortable in her 
white apron. 

How Volunteering Saved Me
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If you wander into the Rokewood 
Community Health Centre every second 
Friday you could be excused for thinking 
you were in the wrong place. On these 
days this Centre, usually dominated by 
older adults, is transformed into a play 
centre with a range of vibrant, colourful  
toys and stimulating activities, with up to 
15 energetic toddlers and their parents or 
caregivers.

Following Hesse’s highly successful 
and long running Facilitated Play 
Program at Beeac Community Health 
Centre, a similar need was recognised 
in the Rokewood community. Program 
facilitator Mai Dixon explains that play 
based programs encourage children’s 
inquisitive desire to initiate and engage 

in experiences that facilitate their 
learning. The Program provides parents 
and caregivers with role modelling 
opportunities offered by the facilitator 
to learn how to structure, support and 
encourage children’s natural play.  

Mai is well qualified with a Diploma of 
Children’s Services, and her experience 
as a family day care provider offers a 
point of difference to traditional play 
groups which often operate more as 
a social support network for parents. 
However, there is no doubt that the 
cuppa and chat amongst the caregivers 
is equally important.

This program is growing at a rapid rate 
and complements the Occasional Child 

Care Service operating on Wednesdays 
from the newly renovated Rokewood 
Kindergarten in Aitchison Street. 

While some of the children attend both 
programs, the different venues serve to 
remind parents and caregivers of the 
varying purposes of each program. While 
Occasional Care offers a drop-off-and-go 
opportunity, the Facilitated Play Program 
requires parents to be actively involved. 

Running adjacently is a quilting group 
whose members enjoy the added 
vibrancy the children bring to the Centre. 
With a Golden Plains Shire Maternal 
Child Health Nurse also operating from 
the Centre, Rokewood Community 
Health is truly becoming an integrated 
and intergenerational hub. 

Facilitating Children’s Play
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Using Performance to
Start Conversations

Reaching bravely into their innermost 
emotions a staggering 70 local men turned 
out in October to attend a performance 
challenging their understanding of mental 
illness. ‘My Dog Has Stripes’, was a play 
introduced, performed and created by 
Australian Actor Alan Hopgood whose 
objective it is to help men recognise and 
speak up about their health needs. 

Hosted by Hesse Rural Health, an 
extensive collaboration of local service 
groups including Growing Winchelsea 
Inc., Corangamite Financial Services 
(Winchelsea Community Bank), 
Winchelsea Lions Club and Surf Coast 
Shire partnered for this important event 

to raise awareness of depression. 

The storyline focussed on a group of case 
workers paid to help others suffering 
emotional health issues when one of the 
men revealed his own personal struggle 
with depression. As a discussion catalyst 
the performance ended with a dynamic 
and engaging Q&A session from a panel 
of local experts.

The play was a return visit to Winchelsea 
for Alan, who in 2013 performed Six 
Degrees of Diabetes, a thought provoking 
performance raising awareness of 
chronic health conditions. Manager 
Community Services Josie Gebert said, 

‘the art of performance is a unique, safe 
and engaging method to bring health 
promotion messages to men in a way 
that can really impact’. The involvement 
and leadership of the sponsoring 
local businesses, service clubs and 
health organisations also provided role 
modelling and peer opportunities to 
encourage men to talk about their health.  
Best of all the men of Winchelsea and 
district are now well placed to recognise 
depression and better support each 
other. 

Knowledge, connection, understanding 
and support leads to stronger and 
healthier communities.
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As the dementia condition progresses 
the experience of increased agitation 
and distress is common. Communication 
difficulties can make finding effective 
solutions additionally challenging. 

This was the case for Kevin whose 
increasing distress resulted in some 
episodes of challenging behaviour 
directed towards staff as they provided 
care to him in Werruna, Hesse’s dementia 
specific environment. Behaviour 
management techniques such as 
distraction and gentle verbal instruction 
were not routinely effective. Eleven 
incidents involving staff were recorded 
over a five month period, often without 
obvious stimulus. Understandably there 
was a growing level of disquiet within the 
unit with concerns for personal safety.

Most distressing of all was that Kevin 
appeared unhappy.

Kevin’s sister Pam said, ‘I was beginning 
to worry the family would be asked to 
move Kevin into a secure psychogeriatic 
facility, but instead was so relieved to 
hear Hesse’s solid determination to find 
a solution and keep him in his home’. 

Addressing Risk for

Better Care Outcomes

Specialised one to one nursing care was 
initiated and a referral made to the Severe 
Behaviour Response Team (SBRT), 
a recent Commonwealth Government 
initiative. The SBRT review provided 
expert assessment, case review and 
additional medical, psychosocial and 
behavioural interventions to trial. These 
included changes in medication and 
prescribed leisure activities incorporating 
Kevin’s prior enjoyment of dancing and 
music. 

Kevin’s improvement was significant. 

Pam later told Hesse’s management 
team how impressed she was that 
the organisation was prepared to look 
beyond itself and reach out for expert 
help.  
 
While at this stage the steps implemented 
have been successful, Kevin’s condition is 
continually being monitored as his illness 
changes. This will undoubtedly promote 
further opportunities for reflection and 
learning through the application of 
person centred approaches.

I am writing to let you know how delighted I was when I visited Kevin yesterday. For the first time in I don’t 
know how long, he had a genuine smile on his face. He seemed happy and was, as I described to my family, 
“joyful.” He interacted very positively with me, addressing me by name and asking after family members. He 
was able to appreciate too, or at least it seemed so, an insider family joke … [the] Slim Dusty DVD … was 
playing in the background and he sang along, tapped his hand and made comment about the content of one 
of the songs. …

I am grateful to you all at Hesse and the SBRT …  who have put so much time and effort into improving 
Kevin’s circumstances. However long this phase is, and whatever the next challenge is I will always be 
grateful for that glimpse of Kevin’s yesterday …

~ Pam
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The Art of Wellbeing

Art in its various forms is widely 
appreciated and visual art holds a very 
important place within Hesse’s residential 
facilities.  Thoughtfully selected works by 
talented local and regional artists, made 
possible for purchase by generous public 
donation, reinforce a focus on health and 
wellbeing. 

The Consumer and Community Advisory 
Committee (C&CAC) critiqued the 
internal surrounds of Hesse’s residential 
environment as a part of their community 
participation and representative role. 
An opportunity was recognised to 
sponsor an award in the October 2015 
Winchelsea Uniting Church Art and 
Photography Show for the exhibit that 
best represented ‘health and wellbeing’. 
The C&CAC debated and then carefully 
drafted a set of criteria to assist the panel 
of judges.
 
Artwork or photography exhibits that 
included the aspects of happiness, 
serenity, hope, security, belonging, fun, 
vitality, community, relationships, living 
things, food and nutrition and a natural 
environment, were deemed worthy of the 
ultimate prize.

Representing the Winchelsea Uniting 
Church Art and Photography Show 
Committee, Jeanette McConachy and 
her team personally thanked the C&CAC 
and Hesse Executive for their generous 
support in sponsoring the award and 
assisting to make the four day community 
fundraising event such a success. 

Consumer Representative and 
award judge, Shirley Roeszler was 
so impressed by the winning painting 
that she convinced Hesse CEO Peter 

Birkett to purchase the artwork for the 
organisation.

‘A Day at the Beach’ watercolour by 
regional artist Diane Hodson now proudly 
hangs in the corridor of Chelsea Lodge, 
giving our residents a daily touch of 
‘health and wellbeing’. The C&CAC are 
looking forward to sponsoring the event 
once again in 2016 and are now even 
canvassing ideas to exhibit Hesse’s own 
art collection to the public.

Jeanette McConachy and Lyn Redding from the Winchelsea Uniting Church with 
Shirley Roeszler and Peter Birkett appreciating Hesse’s art collection.

‘A Day at the Beach’ watercolour was awarded the 
Health and Wellbeing prize.
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Husband and wife, Alan and Betty, 
reside in adjacent rooms at Hesse’s 
aged residential facility. They read 
the newspaper and have morning 
tea together most days. While Alan 
participates in some communal aspects 
of residential living, Betty prefers the 
solitude of her own room rarely joining 
into group activity programs.

Family visits were becoming increasingly 
challenging for the couple’s two 
daughters with Betty initiating less in the 
way of conversation. Using her love of 
music as a catalyst to promote quality 
of life, the Leisure and Lifestyle team 
arranged for Hesse’s Harpist, Enrolled 
Nurse Suzie, to trial a session just for 
Betty. 

It really made a connection. Responding 
to her preference for privacy, Suzie 
recognised that Betty liked the music 
even better when it was played just 
outside her bedroom door. 

When the family next visited for Betty’s 
birthday, Suzie played the harp again in 
the hallway. Betty’s daughters handed 
her the old harmonica resting on the 
bookshelf and to their delight she played 
along joyfully to many of the old songs. 

To see their mother so animated and 

enjoying the music was a very emotional 
moment for the family who admit to 
shedding a tear or two. ‘She truly comes 
alive when she plays,’ they said. Whilst 
they recalled her love of music, the 
daughters were amazed their mother 
remembered so many of the songs and 
that her skills had remained intact. 

A special weekly session is still held just 
for Betty, but now when Suzie plays for 
the other residents in the dining room, 
the sweet melodious sounds of Betty’s 
harmonica can be heard emanating from 
her room. Sometimes Betty can even be 
enticed to join the group.

A life enriched by tapping into past 
enjoyments.

Perfectly in Harmony
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When Christine Dennis, CEO of the 
Australian Council on Healthcare 
Standards (ACHS) was invited by CEO 
Peter Birkett to present the Certificate 
of Accreditation following Hesse’s 
successful outcome of the 2015 
Organisational Wide Survey, she eagerly 
accepted the opportunity to leave her 
metropolitan Sydney office to visit a rural 
health service. 

Christine recalled that no sooner had she 
signed the visitors register, when she 
was greeted enthusiastically by waiting 
management and Board members and 
led into an overflowing lounge room of 
residents for the presentation. When she 
was enticed to remain for a celebratory 
afternoon tea with home cooked scones, 
she realised that what she thought was a 
lovely trip to the country was somewhat 
of an ‘ambush’.

Seizing this opportunity, Hesse’s senior 
management and Board explained to 
the ACHS CEO the overlapping and part 

duplicated external quality accreditation 
systems that monitor Hesse’s integrated 
programs, onerous self assessment 
documents and the time and resource 
intensive burden that these repeated 
events place on smaller health services. 

Sympathetic to these experiences and 
eager to support an improved system 
Christine enlisted the support of Nick 
Ryan of the Australian Aged Care 
Quality Agency (AACQA). Together they 
conceptualised a national pilot project to 
test a joint approach. Hesse and West 
Wimmera Health Service volunteered 
themselves as project participants in a 
2016 trial.

The project, A Single Approach To 
Achieving Dual Accreditation, aims to test 
an approach to reduce regulatory burden 
and overlap of evidence collection for 
services providing both aged and health 
care services and who are subject to 
accreditation against both the National 
Safety and Quality Health Service 

(NSQHS) and Aged Care Accreditation 
Standards. 

The reviews took place in July 2016 
where both Hesse and West Wimmera 
were simultaneously assessed under 
411 combined and aligned Aged Care 
Accreditation, NSQHS and EQuIP 
National Standards. Despite it being a 
‘pilot’ project it was no artificial exercise 
with the results counting to maintain 
ongoing accreditation status. 

Externally evaluated by the University 
of Tasmania, it is hoped that the project, 
will lead to increased efficiencies and 
release more time for improved quality 
client outcomes in smaller resource 
challenged services. 

Change can only come about from speaking 
up on the right issue to the right people 
at the right time, and putting yourself 
forward to create something better. That’s 
exactly what Hesse did and we now 
eagerly look forward to the next phase.  

& Improving Outcomes
Simplifying Quality Systems

Representatives on the ‘A Single Approach to Achieving Dual Accreditation’ Project Steering Committee from the Australian Aged Care Quality Agency, 
Australian Council on Healthcare Standards, West Wimmera Health Service, Hesse Rural Health, University of Tasmania and the Commonwealth 
Department of Health.

18 Operations Report



If you were to develop a marketing 
slogan for rural public sector residential 
aged services, what would it be? 

This was just one of the challenges put 
to Barwon South West (BSW) rural board 
participants at the Competitive Edge 
Board Seminar in August 2015. Presenter 
and marketing expert Dee Madigan, seen 
regularly on the ABC’s ‘Gruen Transfer’, 
encouraged participants to understand 
the public sector point of difference 
and include this into service marketing 
programs. Dee was joined by a range of 
other presenters including Felix Pintado, 
CEO Freemasons Aged Care, Prof. John 
Toumbourou, Deakin University, Prof. Jill 
Klein, Melbourne Business School and 
Debbie de Fiddes from de Fiddes Interior 
Design.

The Competitive Edge Board Seminar 
was a key part of the Business of Aged 
Care Project in the Barwon South 
West, developed and managed by 
Hesse Rural Health and facilitated by 
Board governance consultant Rennis 
Witham. Funded by the Department 
of Health and Human Services, the 
Project worked with rural public health 

service Boards to develop a more 
effective business approach to their aged 
residential services through professional 
development, mentoring, support 
and encouraged thinking outside the 
traditional public sector lens.

The project concluded in 2015 with 

outcomes including; a better reported 
Board understanding of the drivers 
of aged care, improved Board 
communication and decision making and 
the development of a Navigator Tool, a 
dashboard reporting measure putting the 
spotlight on key financial indicators.  

The Project was externally evaluated 
by Deakin University School of 
Psychology and Centre for Social and 
Early Emotional Development (SEED) 
with positive feedback. A proposal for a 
12 month board governance education 
program to create enterprising rural 
health Boards through professional 
development, evaluation and practical 
mentoring opportunities is now on the 
table. 

With such slick governance skills this 
region’s public rural aged care sector 
certainly now has the competitive edge.

‘We have a much sharper focus on 
taking a business-like approach.’ ‘It put the subject [of aged 

residential care] firmly on the Board 
agenda and has now become one 
of the pillars on our strategic plan.’

A Competitive Edge for
the Barwon Region

Presenters and project leaders [left to right]: Dee Madigan, Debbie DeFiddes, Rennis Witham, Prof. 
Jill Klein, Peter Birkett and Prof. John Toumbourou.
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‘If only I had known about Hesse earlier’, 
is a frequent remark made by satisfied 
consumers. Healthcare is a complicated 
industry to navigate. Knowing what 
services you need is hard enough, but 
finding them can be another matter 
altogether. Pondering how to help our 
broader community understand what we 
have to offer, Hesse took to the digital 
age to showcase the range of services 
provided.

Using our very own staff talent, Hesse 
embarked on a series of 12 three minute 
externally produced media clips to 
promote our diverse services, programs 
and facilities, bringing the organisation 
to people’s fingertips with the click of the 
mouse or a tap on the iPad.

Google search for ‘Men’s Groups in 
Beeac’ and you will find out about Hesse 
Rural Health’s successful men’s social 
group initiative in Beeac. Community 
Health Nurse, Karen O’Loughlin explains 
how the group allows rural men to 
connect to gain support through regular 

social activities and outlines other 
innovative primary care programs linking 
health, wellbeing and rurality. 

Enter ‘Winchelsea Groups’ on YouTube 
and hear Planned Activity Group 
Coordinator Jeanette Welsh introduce 
the Victorian township of Winchelsea 
and a well attended and socially inclusive 
planned activity program for older adults. 
Aiming to keep older adults active, living 
independently and socially engaged the 
program offers stimulating activities, 
outings, guest speakers and a popular 
home style meal by a dedicated cook.

Type ‘Leigh or Rokewood Community 
Health’ into YouTube and listen to Health 
Promotion Officer Jen McLean outline 
a range of allied health, home nursing 
and community groups available within 
this small township. The Walking Group, 
Rokewood Men’s Shed, Farm Safety, 
Occasional Care Program, Breakfast 
Club and newly developed community 
vegetable garden are all featured.

In a separate clip, Primary Care 
Manager Josie Gebert explains how 
easy and cost effective it is for people to 
access ‘Hesse’s home based nursing 
services’ dispelling with common myths 
of referral pathways and identifying the 
vast catchment that the nurses travel. 

Noticing the value of social media to 
communicate a message ‘Hesse’s 
Consumer and Community Advisory 
Committee’ also produced a clip 
to explain the important role of the 
consumer voice across all of Hesse’s 
programs. It is intended that this clip will 
assist staff and clients to appreciate the 
important role of consumer partnerships 
and participation. 

Each video includes service users that 
greatly endorse our programs. Further 
clips are under development across 
Hesse’s other service areas. The clips 
are accessible on both the Hesse 
website and YouTube.

Navigating Services
with a Single Click

Planned Activity Group Coordinator Jeanette Welsh tells the camera of the great times to be had at the Winchelsea and Beeac programs.
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Research shows that person centred 
models of care promote opportunities for 
meaningful engagement and improved 
health outcomes for older people. 
‘However, defining what ‘person centred’ 
actually means for everyday aged care 
practice is a question that has interested 
Hesse Rural Health, particularly as it is 
one of our stated organisational values’, 
says Director of Care Annie Coles. 

Hesse’s ongoing collaboration with 
Professor David Edvardsson from 
LaTrobe University in the validation of 
person centred ‘thriving’ assessment 
scales has led to a 2016 opportunity 
to research, implement and evaluate a 
person centred and thriving promoting 
care model applied to residential aged 
care.  

Hesse Rural Health and Cobden District 
Health Services were chosen as the 
Australian intervention and control 

sites respectively in the international 
project jointly undertaken by La Trobe 
University, Melbourne, Umea University, 
Sweden and University of Oslo, Norway. 
The project titled A Person Centred and 
Thriving Promoting Model for Residential 
Aged Care commenced in April and 
aims to support thriving and improve 
satisfaction with the caring environment 
among residents and their relatives, and 
to improve job satisfaction and decrease 
stress of conscience among staff.  

‘Most exciting about this research project 
is that it crosses international borders to 
give a broader cultural comparison to 
the application of the concepts,’ which 
Professor Edvardsson explains has 
not been undertaken in earlier similar 
studies. 

Following a series of initial surveys to 
Hesse residents, relatives and staff 
measuring their experience of thriving 

and the care environment, the entire 
Hesse staffing group attended an 
introductory workshop in April. A further 
11 monthly workshops follow delivered 
by Swedish Researcher Qarin Lood 
(PhD). The sessions involve creative 
and reflective learning experiences 
that allow residential care staff to 
integrate theoretical and research based 
knowledge with their clinical skills. 

The surveys will be repeated after the 
12 month implementation period and 
six months after the completion of the 
project to identify if new practices have 
been sustained.

Annie Coles says, ‘The ultimate goal 
of the research is to promote thriving, 
happiness and a good life for all people; 
and that is something that at Hesse we 
are all very passionate about.’ 

A Person Centred and Thriving Promoting
Care Model for Residential Aged Care

Hesse Rural Health’s Annie Coles, Andrea Dunlop, and Peter Birkett, with La Trobe University’s researchers Qarin Lood (PhD) and Prof. David Edvardsson, 
and Cobram District Health’s Jeannine Creely, CEO, and Kate Rafferty, Director of Nursing.
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Goodness What a Great Program

‘Necessity the inventor of all goodness’ 
was a phrase first utilised in a 1519 
archery manual on how to use a longbow. 
While we may know the modern version 
of the phrase as ‘necessity is the 
mother of invention’, it may be seen that 
‘goodness’ can stem from community 
problem solving. 

Reduced availability of Winchelsea taxis 
throughout the year due to demand from 
National Disability Insurance Scheme 
reforms made the HACC funded Planned 
Activity Program at Winchelsea ADASS 
reconsider transport arrangements 

for some participants. Ray, David and 
Don, three of Hesse’s volunteers and 
regular drivers for the Bus to the Hub 
social meals program, kindly agreed to 
participate in the morning and afternoon 
pick-ups. 

Driving also for the successful Beeac 
Men’s Group, they saw an opportunity for 
a similar program in Winchelsea. They 
told their Winchelsea Men’s Shed mates 
of this great social group, recounting 
trips to a wind farm, vintage car museum 
and the MCG. Soon they had Jeanette 
Welsh, Program Coordinator, convinced 

to trial a similar monthly Men’s Program 
in Winchelsea. It has appeared to strike 
a chord, with successful outings so far to 
Queenscliff and Terang.

Jeanette says, ‘The generational change 
is such that men no longer want to sit 
about in groups, and a Men’s Shed does 
not cater for all. They want to get out and 
have a look around the rural countryside 
where they formerly lived and worked. A 
social setting allows them to chat about 
what they see, remember the past with 
someone else worrying about how to get 
there, where to park and where to go for 
lunch’. 

The Winchelsea Men’s Group is now 
one of 12 regular programs in the 
organisation’s Planned Activity Group 
calendar, each averaging between seven 
and 25 participants.

What started as a transport problem has 
led to the development of a community 
based program supported by the 
generosity of volunteers. During the 
drive one fellow sings aloud in his native 
Maltese, telling everyone he sings when 
he is happy.

A sure sign of the Program’s goodness! 
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With an  ‘order’ placed  for 160  dinner, side 
and dessert plates, the same number of 
forks,  spoons, wine glasses, decanters 
and a handful of lace tablecloths, 
you could be forgiven for thinking this 
was a catering business. Instead it 
was a request made at the Auxiliary’s 
Winchelsea Op Shop by regular through-
travellers from Melbourne intending to 
celebrate a family wedding ‘Bohemian 
style’.

An assortment of non-matching 
oddments of tableware and crockery was 
boxed up and collected by the customers 
who were delighted with their purchase. 
No wonder, with some vintage pieces 
costing as little as 20 cents.

The Op Shop is really a treasure trove 
of miscellany, all generously donated 
by community members content in the 
knowledge that the small monies raised 
will accumulate for worthy health service 
initiatives. 

The Shop provides a welcome point 
to source items cheaply. ‘It provides a 
good feeling for our volunteer members 
that they can offer a helping hand to 
others,’ says Auxiliary President Lynette 
Henderson. Entire households can be 
inexpensively established with crockery, 
furniture, appliances, manchester, 
artwork, books and clothing. The only 
non-negotiable principle is that nothing is 

given away for free, understanding that 
everything in life has value. However, 
come in during ‘half price week’ and 
you could just strike it lucky with a ten 
cent purchase. Recently new storage 
shelving, containers and sorting tables 
have made it a little easier to organise 
the shop. 

The Auxiliary held its 60th AGM in 2016 
and reported that over $75,000 had been 
raised for the year totalling $373,000 in 
the five years since opening. 

‘Astounding’, ‘Staggering’ and ‘Mind 
Blowing’ were all adjectives used by 
community leaders present to describe 
the amount raised. President Lynette 
Henderson provided Board President 
John Carr with a $5,000 cheque to 
contribute to the acquisition of a Grand 
Piano for the residential facilities. 

In his response, John summed up the 
thoughts of everyone when he said that 
the work of this energetic group of women 
was actually ‘bordering on spectacular’.

Bordering on Spectacular

Members of the 
Hospital Auxiliary 

with outdoor 
furniture donated 

during the year.

Auxiliary President, Lynette Henderson, receives a 
gift in recognition from the health service.
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Frank McCoy is a fondly regarded face 
at Hesse Rural Health. Devoted husband 
to resident Cissy (Francisca), he makes 
the journey in his truck from his two acre 
property at Teesdale at least four times 
per week to spend the afternoon and 
early part of the evening with his wife of 
56 years.  This has been his routine for 
the last six years.

Cissy has dementia, is now totally 
dependent for all personal care and no 
longer able to communicate. Frank takes 
her for walks, pushing her wheelchair 
along the pathways and into the gardens 
for sunshine, staying by her side until 
tea time, holding her hand and playing 
his harmonica. When she responds 
with a gentle squeeze of his hand he 
is overjoyed to have her back for the 
briefest moment.

Frank says he comes to see Cissy cared 
for the way she needs to be, ‘to help out’ 
and to ‘point people in the right direction’. 

‘What I owe my girl, there are not enough 

years left to repay.’ He explains Cissy 
was a devoted housewife and mother 
to his four children and she willingly 
uprooted the family to move whenever 
Frank changed jobs, which as a land 
surveyor, he sometimes did. The family 
survived Cyclone Tracy in Darwin in 

1974. He fondly tells of Cissy’s patience, 
tolerance and always being the one to 
extend the olive branch if they ever had 
a ‘row’. 

Frank cannot speak highly enough 
of Hesse and he is well qualified to 
comment, with Cissy having experienced 
two prior aged care facilities before 
settling into Hesse. ‘Cissy is well cared 
for here and it’s a place where I also 
feel that I belong. I enjoy meeting other 
residents, their visitors and just having a 
chat. You make some great friendships 
on this journey.’

He is accepting of a time when he will 
no longer come and he has a few plans 
of his own. But until then, the soothing 
sounds from his harmonica continue to 
echo throughout the facility, bringing a 
quiet joy to all. If you meet him make sure 
to stop to chat as this will make Frank 
and Cissy’s day.

A Partnership of Devotion
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A deep sadness engulfed the Hesse community during 
July when we lost a cherished colleague and friend 
in Marsha Ayres. A skilled and talented Diversional 
Therapist, Marsha passed away peacefully in the 
Winchelsea hospital where she had worked for the past 
14 years. Although a deeply challenging time, to nurse 
Marsha in her final hours was regarded by her colleagues 
as a great privilege. 

With a deep commitment to ensure residents enjoyed 
the best quality of life possible, Marsha was a strong 
advocate for treating everyone as an individual, with the 
respect, privacy and dignity they deserved. She was a 
tireless worker who gave of herself generously in every 
pursuit. 

A memorial service was held at Hesse Rural Health 
attended by Marsha’s mother and Chelsea Lodge 
resident Mary, niece Chre, close friends and over 90 staff, 
colleagues, residents and families. 

Fittingly CEO Peter Birkett welcomed everyone to the 
ceremony in the Hesse Lodge dining room in what 
he referred to as ‘Marsha’s space … her powerhouse 
where she practised her craft’. Those who were closest 
to her told of her positivity, independence, privacy, 

strong work ethic, generosity, pride, creativity, and great 
sense of quirky fun. Cherished thoughts and memories 
were featured through a photographic presentation and 
Marsha was farewelled to her chosen song, a rendition of 
Leonard Cohen’s Hallelujah. 

Humble references to herself as ‘just the Bingo lady’ were 
such an understatement. She was larger than life and 
among Hesse’s finest. We will miss her dearly. 

Of all the years I’ve spent in my life I have never come across anyone else like Marsha. She had a special ability to 
completely understand every resident that passed her way … Therefore she treated us accordingly as individuals, which 
was a great comfort and support to us all. We will always remember and bless her for that. Some people come into our 
life and quickly go by. Others come and stay for awhile. They leave footprints on our heart, and our lives are never the 
same. Rest peacefully dear friend. 

~ Laurene Lloyd (Resident)

Vale Marsha

A Woman of Strength and Honour
10.08.1951 – 03.07.2016
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Armstrong, R & Vesey, D
Atkinson, A
Bell Charitable Fund
Donaghy, P
Earl, J
Gregory, M
Hedding Family
Hewlett, L
Inverleigh Senior Citizens
Jeffreys, V & P
Lindros Family
Low, T
Lowen, D
Lowndes Family
McCoy, F

Mount Moriac Speed Shear
Murfitt, L
Nicholson, R & F
Rogers, L
Rokewood Rodeo
Rokewood Uniting Church
Russell, C & R
Save the Leigh Shire Committee
Thompson, G
Thompson, J
Travaille, M & B
Winchelsea Girl Guides
Winchlesea Hospital Auxiliary
Winchelsea Lions Club
Winchelsea RSL

In celebration of the 100th year of Lions 
International, Winchelsea Lions Club 
were keen to fulfil their ‘we serve’ motto 
at Hesse. Following the 2016 news that 
we were successful in our application 
to secure five additional aged care bed 
licenses, Club President Rob Knuckey 
asked Hesse CEO Peter Birkett, ‘how 
can the Lions Club help to make these 
beds operational?’

Funds raised through paper recycling 
allowed the Club to make a generous 
donation of $15,000 to contribute to the 
conversion of an unused bathroom into a 
new residential bedroom. This will in turn 
assist in bringing additional revenue to 
allow further development.  

The Winchelsea Lions Club have been 
regular financial supporters of Hesse 
over many years enabling the purchase 
of beds, furniture and other equipment. 
They are also active with ‘in kind’, and 
‘in muscle’ support for the Auxiliary with 
the transport of household goods and 
furniture destined for the Op Shop. 

The Lions Club join Bell Charitable Trust, 
Rokewood Golf Club, Rokewood Uniting 
Church, former Save the Leigh Shire 
Committee and Winchelsea Hospital 
Auxiliary in making donations in excess 
of $2,000. Along with contributions 
from individuals and other community 
associations these donations combine to 
over $30,000. 

These generous amounts really expand 
the quality of our service.

Serving up Support

Donation Board

Winchelsea Lions Club’s Neville Mawson, Treasurer, & John Hutton, Vice President, donate $15,000.
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and a Green Thumb

A Positive Outlook

There was never any doubt that Kate 
Allen’s vocation in life would be as a 
gardener, the only question was where. 
Kate spent much of her younger years 
outside amongst nature; her mother was 
a landscape designer and she is the 
fourth generation of gardeners on her 
father’s side. Qualified as a horticulturalist 
at the Collingwood College of TAFE, 
Kate served her apprenticeship with her 
mother’s business before branching out 
(no pun intended) to work elsewhere. 

Kate has worked full time at Hesse Rural 
Health for nine years. In that time the 
outdoor environment has flourished in a 
variety of colour, textures and perfumes 

to create a perfect welcome to patients, 
clients, residents and visitors, and 
relaxing surroundings for staff to work in. 

Gaining inspiration from attending 
open gardens and networking within 
her industry she strikes cuttings and 
rationalises divided plants to keep the 
grounds thriving in an abundance of 
colour, rarely needing anything but 
some pea straw, fertiliser and her own 
enthusiasm.

With the help of Ross Roses in South 
Australia, her latest initiative is to 
propogate a ‘Hesse’ rose, which will 
be burgundy in colour in keeping with 

the organisational logo, and will serve 
as a feature in all of the site gardens, 
especially residential aged care. Kate 
says, ‘to plant a Hesse rose in the garden 
may be the perfect way for a family to 
remember loved ones.’

Her greatest pleasure is to take a bunch 
of flowers to a resident to bring a smile 
to their face. Of Hesse Rural Health Kate 
says, ‘I am so lucky, it’s the best job in 
the world’. 

And we are certainly fortunate to have 
her.
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‘Accessible and Relevant Health 
Services Throughout the Lifespan’ is the 
No. 1 priority in Hesse’s 2015 – 2019 
Strategic Plan. A key objective  was 
to pilot the implementation of Nurse 
Practitioner Services into the more 
isolated rural communities within the 
Hesse catchment. 

In December 2015 a milestone was 
achieved in this four year long strategic 
project when Nurse Practitioner Services 
formally commenced in Rokewood. Kam 
Benton is among a small number of Nurse 
Practitioners providing such services in 
isolated Victorian communities, just like 
Rokewood.  

Jim Boyle, a local of the Rokewood and 
Corindhap area, makes a trip to the 
Rokewood Centre each month for blood 
tests prior to seeing his regular specialist 
physician in Ballarat. Jim says the 
opportunity to have his blood tests locally 
saves him the time and inconvenience of 
two trips into Ballarat. 

The Rokewood Centre also evokes 
plenty of memories for Jim having lived in 
the former Commercial Bank of Australia 
building in the mid 1950’s as a teenager 
when his step father was the local branch 
manager. He recalls, ‘with electricity not 
coming to Rokewood until about 1960, in 
those days heating of the bank chamber 
was by kerosene boiler and the lighting 
by kerosene lamp.’ 

He also explains that the steel railing in 
the front of the building was to prevent 
the cows from breaking the windows with 
their horns, and he remembers regular 
pistol practice, with both Bank Manager 

and tellers in possession of weapons for 
their protection. 

Since Nurse Practitioner services 
commenced in Rokewood Jim is among 
61 registered patients, ranging in age 
from two to 89 years.  Kam’s advanced 
scope of nursing practice provides for 
assessment and treatment of a range 
of acute, supportive, aged and primary 
conditions. Providing immunisation, skin 
checks, treatment of infections, blood 
tests, and advice on sexual reproductive 
health, preventative health and the 

management of a range of chronic 
diseases are among the work she 
undertakes. Referral to and liaison with 
other health professionals, along with 
coordination of care, also forms a part of 
her role.   

Of the advanced nursing services Jim 
says ‘it’s great to have these services on 
our doorstep’.  

Fortunately, however, these days there is 
no need for pistols or danger from cows 
wandering through the town common. 

Better Health is in the Bank with
the Nurse Practitioner

Nurse Practitioner 
Kam Benton 
consulting.

Reflecting on the Rokewood Centre’s banking past.
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Falls are a common source of injury in 
older adults and can cause significant 
harm including sprains and fractures. 
This can reduce independence and lead 
to further health complications. 

Impaired balance, unsteady gait, reduced 
muscle strength, slower reaction times, 
poor vision, inappropriate footwear and 
the impact of multiple medications are 
just some of the factors that may cause 
falling. However Michael Troup, Hesse 
Physiotherapist, says that falls are not an 
inevitable part of ageing and most can be 
prevented. 

Staying healthy and active, maintaining 
strength, balance and flexibility, 
identifying and addressing individual 
risk factors and improving home safety 
to avoid hazards are effective falls 
prevention strategies. 

Dedicated ‘No Falls’ exercise programs, 
designed for older adults can also 

produce significant reductions in falls. 
After completion of specialised training 
overseen by Active Ageing Australia, 
Michael has become a ‘No Falls’ Leader 
and commenced group programs held 
fortnightly at the Beeac Community 
Health Centre and at the Inverleigh Hall.  
The need for the Inverleigh group grew 
from the regular walking group, when 
some participants were recognised as 
unsteady. 

The program emphasises the important 
components of balance enhancement, 
strength and flexibility improvement 
and visual stimulation. Participants are 
guided through a series of exercises to 
practice during the session and later at 
home.

Michael says, ‘it’s amazing how many 
people don’t understand the importance 
of daily exercise and balance for staying 
strong. Hopefully the sessions can get 
these important health messages out’.

Approximately four to six people in each 
group are a perfect size for supervision 
of the prescribed exercises, although 
it is expected the groups will grow as 
the word gets out. Feedback has been 
positive. In the words of one participant, 
‘While we might look a bit funny standing 
on one leg, on the balance board and 
doing some of the other exercises, it will 
be well worth it’. 

With a higher proportion of older people 
living locally, Michael says a ‘No Falls’ 
Program can be one of the most beneficial 
preventative health measures to improve 
the wellbeing of the community.

Beeac and Inverleigh

No Falling in

‘No Falls’ and exercise groups at the Beeac Centre.
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The Statement of Priorities is a key document of accountability between the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and 
Hesse Rural Health as a small rural public health service.  This agreement defines the government’s key priorities and required actions, 
and identifies Hesse’s 2015-2016 deliverables and outcomes.

Priority Action Deliverable Outcome
Patient 
Experience 
and 
Outcomes

Drive improved health outcomes through a strong focus 
on patient centred care in the planning, delivery and 
evaluation of services, and the development of new 
models for putting patients first.

Implement an organisation-wide approach to advance 
care planning including a system for identifying, 
documenting and/or receiving advance care plans in 
partnership with patients, carers and substitute decision 
makers so that people’s wishes for future care can be 
activated when medical decisions need to be made.

Strengthen the response of health services to family 
violence. This includes implementing interventions, 
processes and systems to prevent, identify and respond 
appropriately to family violence at an individual and 
community level.

All client/patient/resident treatment plans 
developed by individual disciplines within 
the multi-disciplinary team will form part of 
the integrated consumer centred care plan.

Ensure that all client intake processes 
include a check of whether advanced care 
plans are in place and on record. If not in 
place, identify an opportunity for the timely 
development of a plan.

Enable co-location opportunities with 
service providers to provide family violence 
counselling to our community.

In Progress
Alignment with transition 
to electronic patient 
record system.

Completed

Completed 
Service agreements in 
place.
 

Governance, 
Leadership 
and Culture

Demonstrate an organisational commitment to 
Occupational Health and Safety, including mental health 
and wellbeing in the workplace. Ensure accessible and 
affordable support services are available for employees 
experiencing mental ill health. Work collaboratively with 
the Department of Health and Human Services and 
professional bodies to identify and address systemic 
issues of mental ill health amongst the medical 
professions.

Monitor and publically report incidents of occupational 
violence. Work collaboratively with the Department of 
Health and Human Services to develop systems to 
prevent the occurrence of occupational violence.

Promote a positive workplace culture and implement 
strategies to prevent bullying and harassment in the 
workplace. Monitor trends of complaints of bullying and 
harassment and identify and address organisational 
units exhibiting poor workplace culture and morale.

Implement strategies to support health service workers 
to respond to the needs of people affected by ice.

Include in the 2015-2016 Seminar Series 
a presentation on mental health in the 
workplace to ensure employees are 
informed of supports available for effective 
workplace participation.

Ensure any incidents of occupational 
violence are reported to the Quality 
Governance Committee via existing key 
performance indicators.

The 2016 Seminar Series will include 
organisation-wide information sessions on 
bullying and harassment.

Hesse Executive Management will network 
with local police to ensure current Code 
Grey procedures are suitable to deal with 
presentations to Urgent Care including 
person/s affected by ice.

Not Completed

Completed

Completed
Included on organisation 
wide training plan.

In Progress

Statement of Priorities

34 Operations Report



Priority Action Deliverable Outcome
Safety and 
Quality

Ensure management plans are in place to prevent, 
detect and contain Carbapenem Resistant 
Enterobacteriaceae as outlined in Hospital Circular 
02/15 (issued 16 June 2015).

Implement effective antimicrobial stewardship practices 
and increase awareness of antimicrobial resistance, its 
implications and actions to combat it, through effective 
communication, education, and training.

Provide information and support about prevention, 
risk factors and early detection and management of 
diseases by employing a prevention and detection 
approach similar to the ‘Supporting patients to be smoke 
free: an ABCD approach in Victorian health services’ 
model.

The Medical Advisory Committee will review 
management plans to ensure appropriate 
clinical management and adherence to 
Hospital Circular 02/15.

Provide the clinical workforce with 
appropriate education and training in regard 
to antimicrobial stewardship.

All new inpatients, residents and clients 
who are current smokers will be offered 
information to support quitting, and this will 
be noted within care plans.

Completed

Completed
90% of all nursing staff 
completed relevant 
training.

Completed

Financial 
Sustainability

Improve cash management processes to ensure that 
financial obligations are met as they are due.

Review and refine existing service agreements with 
providers.

The current accounts package utilised 
will be expanded to provide availability for 
electronic receipting of accounts paid.

Review service agreements to ensure they 
remain current and reflect arrangements in 
place.

In Progress

Completed
Health Purchasing 
Victoria transition project 
implemented.

Access Implement integrated care approaches across health 
and community support services to improve access and 
responses for disadvantaged Victorians.

Progress partnerships with other health services to 
ensure patients can access treatments as close to 
where they live when it is safe and effective to do so, 
making the most efficient use of available resources 
across the system.

Develop telehealth service models to facilitate the 
delivery of high quality and equitable specialist services 
to patients across regional Victoria.

Sustain the current integrated care 
approach undertaken by our small rural 
health service to ensure effective support for 
disadvantaged persons.

Hesse will make personal representation 
to tertiary referral public and private 
hospitals to ensure they are aware of 
service capacity in this catchment and will 
explore opportunities for the efficient use of 
resources via the regional CEO Council. 

Deliver to the DHHS the final report of the 
Business of Aged Care Project.

Through the Barwon Health led telehealth 
project, facilitate video link consultations 
for Hospital in the Home and Urgent Care 
presentations where appropriate and 
possible.

Completed

Completed

Completed 

Completed
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Hesse Rural Health (Hesse) confirms that 
details in respect of the items listed have been 
retained and are available to the relevant 
Ministers, Members of Parliament and the 
public on request, subject to Freedom of 
Information requirements if applicable.

Board Functions
The Directors contribute to the governance 
of Hesse collectively through attendance 
at meetings. Individual contribution occurs 
through participation in, or chairmanship of, 
the various committees of the Board. 

Sub-committees include Finance, Resources 
& Audit, Quality & Ethics and Medical Clinic. 
Board representation exists on Consumer & 
Community Advisory Committee.

Payment of Board Members
In accordance with the Health Services Act 
1988, Board Members of rural hospitals are 
not eligible for payment or sitting fees, but 
may be reimbursed for expenses incurred.

Pecuniary and Conflict of Interest
Board Members must declare a pecuniary 
and conflict of interest in agenda items of 
Board meetings, where applicable. They 
leave the meeting when the item is under 
discussion and therefore do not participate in 
proceedings or voting.

No issues of pecuniary or conflict of interest 
were noted.

Education
Governance education is available to Board 
Members through internal and external 
sources.

Corporate Risk Management
The Board has policies and procedures in 
place to ensure that it is compliant with the 
requirements of risk management. 

Clinical Risk Management
All staff are qualified to undertake their roles. 
Professional registration is checked to ensure 
relevant staff meet the requirements of the 
Australian Health Practitioner Regulation 
Agency (AHPRA) or other recognised bodies.

Hesse is part of a sub-regional approach to 
medical credentialing with access to clinical 

advice through Colac Area Health. Hesse 
participates in a variety of quality systems 
ensuring clinical care is subject to continuous 
review.

Fees
All Fees charged by the service are in 
accordance with the Hospitals and Charities 
(Fees) Regulations 1986 and otherwise 
determined by the Department of Health 
and Human Services and as directed by 
the Commonwealth Department of Social 
Services.

Feedback and Complaints
Consumer feedback is valued as a guide 
to the quality of care delivered. Comments 
and suggestions are welcomed and may be 
directed to the Chief Executive Officer. 

The Health Service Commissioner can be 
contacted on (03) 8601 5200 or Toll Free 
1800 136 066 to assist with unresolved 
complaints. 

Financial Management Act 1994
The requirements as listed under the Direction 
for the Minister for Finance Part 9.1.3 (iv) 
are available for scrutiny by the Minister, 
Members of Parliament or consumers on 
request to the Chief Executive Officer. 

Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1982
The Service operates within the guidelines 
defined within the Freedom of Information 
Act 1982 and its subsequent amendments.

For access to medical records there is a 
mandatory application fee of $27.90 that 
must accompany the written charges for 
searching, photocopying and postage.

Consumers wishing to access information 
should make a written request to the Chief 
Executive Officer, Hesse Rural Health, 8 
Gosney Street, Winchelsea, Vic 3241. 

Three requests for information were received  
during  the  year. 

Privacy
Hesse complies with legislation relating 
to confidentiality and privacy including the 
Health Services Act 1988, Health Records 
Act 2001, Australian Privacy Act 1988 and 
Privacy Amendment Act 2012. Policies 

ensure that personal health information 
remains confidential and secure and is 
accessible under FOI guidelines.

Buildings and Maintenance
Hesse complies with the Building Act 1993, 
which encompasses the Building Code of 
Australia, under the guidelines for publicly 
owned buildings in all redevelopment and 
maintenance issues and issued by the 
Minister for Finance in 1994. 

Publications and Information
This Annual Report is distributed widely and 
is available upon request at Hesse Rural 
Health or on the Hesse website. A range of 
brochures and information pamphlets are 
freely available for consumers and carers.

Protective Disclosures Act 2012
Hesse has in place appropriate procedures 
for disclosures in accordance with the 
Protected Disclosures Act 2012. No 
protected disclosures were made within the 
Act in 2015-2016.

Industrial Relations
Hesse operates in accordance with the 
relevant public sector enterprise bargaining 
agreements and is a member of Victorian 
Hospital Industrial Association (VHIA) who 
negotiates on Hesse’s behalf in the formation 
of new agreements. 

Employment and Conduct Principles
Hesse is committed to the principles of merit 
and equity in the workplace with respect to 
employment, promotion and opportunity. 
An Employee Code of Conduct guides 
responsible behaviour in the workplace. 
Employees have been correctly classified in 
workforce data collections.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy
During 2015-16 no tenders or contracts were 
let or completed with a value greater than $1 
Million.

Reporting Compliance Index
This Report is prepared in accordance with 
the Financial Management Act 1994 and the 
directions of the Minister for Finance, Part 9, 
for open disclosure about our Service, our 
people and our financial management.

Compliance
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Competitive Neutrality
All competitive neutrality requirements were 
met in accordance with Government costing 
policies for public hospitals.

External Reviews
There were no external reviews conducted 
by the health service.

Occupational Health & Safety Act 2004
Policies and procedures provide guidance 
for safety in the workplace. Designated 
workgroups have been established and 
representatives are elected. No major 
industrial accidents were reported during the 
year. 

Carers Recognition Act 2012
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, 
promotes and values the role of people 
in care relationships. Hesse understands 
the different needs of persons in care 
relationships and that care relationships 
bring benefits to the patients, their carers 
and to the community. Hesse takes all 
practicable measures to ensure that its 
employees, agents and carers have an 
awareness and understanding of the care 
relationship principles and this is reflected 
in our commitment to a model of patient and 
family centred care and to involve carers in 
the development and delivery of our services.

Environmental Impacts
Hesse is committed to minimising 
environmental impacts and has in place 
effective systems including water harvesting, 
paper waste recycling and reducing 
energy consumption through reporting and 
monitoring.

Consultancies
There were no consultancies where the total 
fees payable were $10,000 or greater, and 
six where the total fees payable were less 
than $10,000. Total expenditure incurred 
during 2015-2016 in relation to these is 
$17,241 (excl. GST).

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2016

ATTESTATION ON DATA INTEGRITY
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that reported 
data reasonably reflects actual performance. Hesse Rural Health Service has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2016

ATTESTATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH MINISTERIAL STANDING DIRECTION 4.5.5 - RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK AND PROCESSES
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has complied with the Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5 – Risk Management 
Framework and Processes. Hesse Rural Health Service’s Finance, Resources and Audit Committee has verified this. 

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2016

ATTESTATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE AUSTRALIAN / NEW ZEALAND RISK MANAGEMENT STANDARD
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has risk management processes in place consistent with the AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 
(or an equivalent designated standard) and an internal control system is in place that enables the executive to understand, manage and 
satisfactorily control risk exposures. The Board of Management verifies this assurance and that the risk profile of Hesse Rural Health has been 
critically reviewed within the last 12 months.
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1. Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE. 0.01
2. Number of accepted Workcover claims with lost time due to injury with an occupational violence cause per 1,000,000 
hours worked. 0.00

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported. 7
4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE. 0.07
5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition. 14 %

Definitions: for the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply. 
Occupational Violence: any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out of, or in the course of their em-
ployment. Incident: occupational health and safety incidents reported in the health service incident reporting system. Code Grey reporting is not included. 
Accepted Workcover Claims: accepted workcover claims that were lodged in 2015-16. Lost Time: is defined as greater than one day.

Occupational Violence Statistics 2015-16

John Carr, President
31 August 2016

RESPONSIBLE BODIES DECLARATION
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for Hesse Rural Health Service for 
the year ending 30 June 2016.

Operations Report
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2016 2015 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Nursing 29.74 31.38 29.28 28.11 31.22 27.09 24.70
Medical Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Administration 9.62 9.99 9.88 9.31 9.50 9.35 9.82
Hotel & Allied 40.66 37.63 39.57 35.69 34.49 32.72 28.96
Ancillary (Allied) 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.88 1.31
TOTAL 80.86 79.84 79.58 73.96 76.06 70.04 64.79

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Total Expenses 10,816,409 10,510,650 10,106,138 9,805,155 8,902,974
Total Revenue 10,216,146 10,447,481 9,773,155 9,539,908 8,845,720
Operating Surplus (deficit) (600,263) (63,169) (332,983) (265,247) (57,254)
Retained Earnings (accumulated losses) 1,922,445 2,522,708 2,585,877 2,918,860 3,184,107
Total Assets 18,420,672 17,205,956 16,796,166 14,756,484 14,981,155
Total Liabilities 8,416,845 6,601,867 6,128,907 5,350,805 5,310,229
Net Assets 10,003,827 10,604,089 10,667,259 9,405,679 9,670,926
Total Equity 10,003,827 10,604,090 10,667,259 9,405,679 9,670,926

Net Operating Result Actuals Target
Before Capital & Specific Items 333,617 41,257
Comprehensive Result (600,263) (651,417)

Cash Management Actuals Target
Creditors 17 < 60 days
Debtors 16 < 60 days

Asset Management Actuals Target
Adjusted Current Asset Ratio 0.64 0.70
Days of Available Cash 175.20 14.00

Information & Communications Technology Actuals
Business as Usual Expense (exc GST) $300,453
Non-Business as Usual Expense (exc GST) $0

TABLE 1: FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TABLE 2: WORKFORCE STATISTICS
June Current Month June Year to Date
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Emergency Medical Treatment 138 167 175 216 167
Community Contact (nursing, allied health, 
planned activity groups, health promotion) 30,686 26,636 24,585 20,414 20,371

SEPARATIONS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Acute 78 75 59 56 43
Non-Acute 0 0 3 3 2
Same Day 2 3 2 3 1
Total Hospital Separations 80 78 64 62 46

WEIS Public 53 84 73 77 52
WEIS Private, DVA & TAC 20 48 41 36 29

PATIENT BED DAYS
Acute 918 948 822 796 496
Non-Acute 0 0 303 207 253
Same Day 2 3 2 3 1
Total Hospital Patient Days 920 951 1,127 1,006 750

TABLE 3: ADMITTED PATIENTS

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Bed Days (Consolidated) 19,431 19,609 19,513 19,417 19,287
Separations (Consolidated) 43 36 41 56 50

TABLE 5: AGED CARE

TABLE 4: NON-ADMITTED PATIENTS

Fig. 3: Community Service Provision
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Help Me Thrive

Some music, a familiar song
A rhythm to make me come alive

A tune that I can sing to
It helps me to thrive

A word, a look, a smile
To linger, a moment or five

Make the time to connect with me
It helps me to thrive

Listen to my story, see who I am
Hear all that I have survived

For I long to tell it to you
It helps me to thrive

Nourish me with food and wine
Do not limit or deprive

As they are the essence of life
It helps me to thrive

A task or job that I can do
A little something for which to strive
To feel useful and needed once again

It helps me to thrive

A joke or two, a bit of fun
Some laughter will surely revive

Remember to count me in
It helps me to thrive

Tell me about the places I know
Or take me for a drive

Recognise it is my community too
It helps me to thrive

Remind me of people from years gone by
Or when special visitors arrive

A cherished opportunity to see them now
It helps me to thrive

A cue, a signpost, something to prompt
An ignited memory that derives

These reflections of my life
It helps me to thrive

A gentle hand, a reassuring touch
Reminders of meaning in our lives
To jointly experience our humanity

Then both of us can thrive
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Donald Lang, Chair
Quality & Ethics Sub-Committee

Responsible Quality 
Agency Quality Assessment Tool Service Assessed Date Actions / 

Outcomes Achieved

Australian Council on 
Healthcare Standards

Common Care Standards HACC Services Nov 2014 18

NSQHS Organisation Wide Survey Acute Hospital & Urgent 
Care May 2015 256

EQuIP National Periodic Review Acute Hospital & Urgent 
Care Jul 2016 102

Australian Aged Care
Quality Agency

Residential Aged Care Standards Residential Aged Care Jul 2015 44

Home Care Standards Home Care Services 
(formerly CACPS) Feb 2016 18

Residential Aged Care Standards 
Unannounced Assessment Contact Residential Aged Care Feb 2016 7

Australian Council on
Healthcare Standards

and
Australian Aged Care

Quality Agency

Dual Agency Pilot Project
‘A Single Approach to Achieving 

Dual Accreditation’
Residential Aged Care & 
Hospital & Urgent Care Jul 2016 411

Welcome

In another busy year for demonstrating quality at Hesse, we have experienced five separate, 
routine external quality review events in 15 months to maintain ongoing accreditation status in 
residential aged care, acute care, urgent care, primary care, HACC and home care services.  
Once again, all outcome areas were met. 

However, while we welcome these events as a driver for vigilance, a chance to showcase 
achievements and remind our community of the excellent health service that we have, we are 
conscious of unnecessary duplication, repetition and administration required for these quality 
events. Ironically this reduces the time and resources available to implement real quality 
improvements. We have a vision for a single quality review system that will simultaneously 
monitor all the interrelated services offered by a small rural health service. It is our belief that this 
could offer opportunities to further improve and also strengthen areas currently under-monitored.

Hesse was therefore delighted to participate, along with West Wimmera Health Service, in the 
pilot project A Single Approach To Achieving Dual Accreditation. We extend our sincere gratitude 
to the Australian Council on Healthcare Standards (ACHS) and Australian Aged Care Quality 
Agency (AACQA) for recognising the need for an improved system and being willing partners to  
drive this project. We eagerly await the outcome of the evaluation by the University of Tasmania.

To mark Hesse’s participation in this inaugural project, the 2016 Quality of Care Report has 
been divided into the 20 sections mapped by ACHS and AACQA covering 411 expected quality 
outcome areas.

On behalf of the Board I wish to congratulate all staff for their significant efforts during the year to 
ensure quality remains such a high priority at Hesse. It is with pleasure and pride that I introduce 
to you this year’s Quality of Care Report.

Quality Accreditation Status

Quality of Care Report
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2. Consumer 
Engagement

Consumer and community engagement 
occurs with enthusiastic representation 
on the Resident, Relatives and Carers 
Committee, Hospital Auxiliary and 
Consumer and Community Advisory 
Committee (C&CAC). Each committee 
has a discrete focus with overlapping 
membership and communication 
pathways leading to strong community 
participation.  

The C&CAC has further defined its 
consumer representative role through 
the production of an information 

1. Governance and
Quality Systems

Our organisational Quality Framework 
outlines key systems, decision 
making structures and communication 
processes for best practice quality care. 
The driving principle is that quality is not 
a simple matter of reaching a standard, 
but of addressing opportunities for 
improvement, intelligently prioritised 
against risk and managed within the 
resources available. 

A key element is the organisational 
Quality Plan, monitored by the Quality 
and Ethics Sub-Committee, listing key 
projects. The larger subset Domain 
Action Plans are overseen by the Quality 
Leadership Committee operationalising 
objectives in eight organisationally 
relevant areas. These include: Clinical, 
Primary Care, Lifestyle, Consumer 
Participation, Environs, Occupational 
Health and Safety, Human Resources 
and Administration & Corporate. 

Key projects on the 2016 Quality Plan 
have included: implementation of nurse 
practitioner services to the Rokewood and 
district communities; commencement 
of the multi-disciplinary Clinical Review 
Committee with Visiting Medical Officer, 
nursing and allied health representation; 
A Single Approach to Achieving Dual 
Accreditation pilot project; participation 
in Thriving and Person Centred Care 
Research; introduction of primary care 
key performance indicators for effective 
clinical governance.

Formal complaints remain low (four) and 
all have been satisfactorily resolved. 
Compliments to the health service 
continue to outweigh other feedback and 
suggestions.

brochure and YouTube Clip. The media 
clip was showcased at a regional 
consumer advisory networking forum 
with positive feedback. Consumer 
Representative tours have resulted 
in identification of service re-design 
opportunities including the provision of 
toilet and bathroom facilities in Urgent 
Care. Broader representation across 
the diverse catchment from Beeac and 
Rokewood is an area of focus. Resident 
and Carers newsletters have improved 
design, information and readability.

3. Workforce, Education
and Recruitment

A skilled, effective and satisfied workforce 
provides a sound basis for quality patient 
care outcomes. Workforce turnover has 
averaged 10% over the last three years 
with retirement and family issues as the 
most common reasons. The average 
length of employee tenure is five to ten 
years. Solid demand for employment 
continues and is attributable to Hesse’s 
excellent reputation as an employer.  
Career pathways exist from unskilled to 
clinical roles with supported professional 
development and opportunities for 
internal appointment.

The introduction of National Safety 
Quality Health Standards (NSQHS) in 
2013 required additional mandatory 
staff education. Hesse’s new format 
resources employees for two dedicated 
days with feature workshops and online 
learning. Achievement rates average  
95%. Diversity & Inclusion and Thriving 
& Person Centred Care were featured 
topics. Costs to deliver this format 
average $40,000 annually. In addition 
21 out of 23 identified supported training 
priorities were achieved.
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5. Clinical Practice
and Assessment

Timely assessment can effectively 
manage typical health conditions 
affecting older persons. DHHS funded 
training in Comprehensive Health 
Assessment of the Older Person has 
strengthened clinical skills with 65% of 
Registered Nurses having completed 
this education. 

Clinical guidelines and agreed pathways 
for assessment and care planning 
processes are utilised within the areas 
of pain management, continence 
management, behaviour management, 
sensory loss, mobility, dexterity, oral 
and dental care, sleep, nutrition and 
hydration. Resident dental care has 
been supported through a visiting dental 
service from Barwon Health. 

Care plans are developed with the 
resident and their representatives on 

with Thomas Banks, Centre for Access, 
who shared his lived experience of 
cerebral palsy and supported Hesse to 
fulfil its values of inclusion. 

admission with reviews at three months, 
annually and as conditions change. 
100% of residents had care plan reviews 
throughout the year. 

7. Community Information
and Engagement

A sound understanding of community 
needs is critical for effective health 
service provision and identification of 
opportunities for community, program 
and service development. The population 
health demographics of Hesse’s 
catchment were analysed in 2016 
using ABS, G21 and other local data. 
Presentations to the Board and C&CAC 
demonstrated links to the current Health 
Promotion Plan.

Local events such as the Winchelsea Hunt 
and Gather Festival, My Dog Has Stripes 
Men’s Health Forum, Shelford Duck 
Race, Winchelsea Art and Photography 
Show and recently produced YouTube 
Media Clip series have provided service 
and health promotion opportunities. 

4. Clinical Information 
Systems

Quality health care relies on streamlined 
clinical information systems. The 
introduction of e-Tools software system 
has assisted in effective documentation 
and account information for clients 
receiving home care support. The 
transition from hard copy patient care 
records in acute and aged residential 
service to electronic records is identified 
on the Quality Plan as an area for 
improvement and preferred software 
systems have been evaluated. In 
the meantime, to assist in the timely 
retrieval of histories, developments have 
included improved indexing for acute and 
residential records, new categorisation 
systems for urgent care presentations 
and extended use of tracer cards. 
Valued medical record coding support is 
provided by Barwon Health. 

6. Rights, Choice
and Diversity

Ensuring all patients and residents 
have access to information about rights, 
are offered choices and included in 
decision making is a key responsibility 
of health services. The Charter of Health 
Care Rights is displayed within acute 
bedrooms and the Charter of Care 
Recipients Rights and Responsibilities 
displayed in communal residential areas. 
The ‘Your Rights and Responsibilities’ 
brochure is received on admission 
which includes avenues for advocacy 
and complaints. Interpreters are utilised 
for non-English speaking clients and 
their families, with German and Maltese 
interpreter sessions conducted this year. 

Staff embraced diversity in a workshop 
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Advocacy in Action
While providing wound care to a client 
with a physical disability Hesse’s 
Primary Care District Nursing Service 
identified insufficient personal 
care and hygiene services were 
compromising the client’s health. 
Contact was made with the National 
Disability Insurance Service (NDIS) 
to arrange advocacy services. An 
Advocate was appointed and the 
client replaced the existing care 
provider with Multiple Sclerosis 
Society of Australia (MS Australia).



9. Medication
Safety

Safe medication practices occur through 
ongoing monitoring of prescribing, 
dispensing, administration, storage 
and disposal of medicines. Medication 
histories are undertaken on admission 
for new residents and patients, which 
includes reconciliation, known allergies 
and adverse reactions.  

Multidisciplinary Medication Advisory 
Committee meetings attended by senior 
nursing staff, Visiting Medical Officers 
and Pharmacists monitor effective 
medication management and ensure the 
quality use of medicines.

Medication error rates reduced by 
50% over the past year, with increased 

vigilance on signing medication charts 
and administration practices limited to the 
scope of registered and enrolled nursing 
only. Annual mandatory medication 
theoretical and practical competencies 
were undertaken with 89% and 86% 
achievement rates respectively.

Low rates of polypharmacy continue 
with 18% of aged care residents utilising 
nine or more medications. Anti-microbial 
stewardship ensures antibiotics 
are prescribed only as necessary. 
Prescriptions of antipsychotic medication 
sit at 10% which is below benchmark for 
similar aged care facilities. 

8. Infection 
Prevention

An Infection Prevention Management 
Plan developed with support from the 
Victorian Infection Prevention Service 
(VICIPS) maintains Hesse’s strong focus 
on preventing and controlling healthcare 
associated infections.  Clinical practice, 
hospital cleaning, laundry and food 
handling procedures are all critical 
elements. Monthly internal cleaning audit 
results are above 97% and surpass the 
70% state acceptable benchmark.

Observed Hand Hygiene practice rates 
average 95%, and 98% of all staff 
completed mandatory online hand 
hygiene education. 90% of Registered 
and Enrolled Nurses completed training 
in Aseptic Technique. 

An effective antimicrobial stewardship 
program is in place with the monthly 
monitoring of infections, reporting to 
VICNISS and participation in the annual 
National Aged Care Antimicrobial 
Prescribing Survey (NAPS). There have 
been no hospital acquired infections or 
outbreaks of gastroenteritis.

Of note is the 100% increase in influenza 
vaccination uptake over four years 
reaching 83% by the 30th of June 2016, 
attributable to a coordinated approach 
from the Infection Control Nurse and 
Nurse Practitioner.  

Visitors are encouraged to use the new 
hand hygiene stations at each entrance.
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Patient Experience and Outcomes Target 2016 Actuals
Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey (VHES) 
- data submission Full Compliance Achieved

Interpreter Services NA 2
Healthcare Associated Infection Surveillance No Outliers Achieved
SAB Rate per Occupied Bed Days < 2/10,000 0
Staphylococcus Aureus Bacteraemia < 2/10,000 0

Governance, Leadership and Culture Target 2016 Actuals
People Matter Survey - Patient Safety Culture 80 % 96 %

Safety and Quality Target 2016 Actuals
Health Service Accreditation Full Compliance Achieved
Residential Aged Care Accreditation Full Compliance Achieved
Cleaning Standards (Overall) Full Compliance Achieved
Cleaning Standards (AQL-A) 90 % Not Applicable
Cleaning Standards (AQL-B) 85 % Achieved
Cleaning Standards (AQL-C) 85% Achieved
Hand Hygiene Compliance 80 % 95 %
Healthcare Worker Immunisation - Influenza
- to 30th June 2016 75 % 83 %

Submission of Data to VICNISS Full Compliance Achieved

Safety and Quality (per 1,000 bed days) Statewide Rates 2016 Actuals
Pressure Ulcers - Stage 1 0.40 0.31
Pressure Ulcers - Stage 2 0.41 0
Pressure Ulcers - Stage 3 0.07 0
Pressure Ulcers - Stage 4 0.03 0
Use of Physical Restraint 0.57 0
Multiple Medications - 9 or more 4.16 0.92
Falls and Fractures 6.43 5.61
Unplanned Weight Loss 0.51 0.93

11. Clinical Handover
and Referral

In the 24 hour industry of health care, 
critical information must be transferred 
between shifts and staff. Standardised 
handover templates, transfer documents, 
referral procedures, VMO liaison and 
clinical documentation resource guides 
all play an important role.

The patient is also involved to ensure 
they are clear about care that is being 
provided and treatment objectives. 
Auditing of bedside handover revealed 
positive patient experiences and 
increased knowledge of care. 

The information brochure ‘Clinical 
Handover at the Bedside’ used to 
inform patients and carers about the 
clinical handover process was reviewed 
and approved by the Consumer and 
Community Advisory Committee. 

12. Blood and Blood
Products

The ability to receive blood transfusions at 
Winchelsea Hospital is a great convenience 
for local patients with conditions such 
as anaemia. Four transfusions were 
undertaken of the 80 admissions during 
the year. Transfusions are monitored by the 
referring VMO. 

Registered Nurses follow best practice 
clinical guidelines to ensure safe and 
effective treatment, and further education in 
Blood Matters e-learning is undertaken prior 
so that knowledge is current.
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10. Consumer and
Patient Identification

Right treatment, right dose, right time, 
and right route. For these patient ‘rights’ 
to be upheld, the health care professional 
must also have the ‘right patient’. Patient 
identification requires confirmation 
using at least three identifiers whenever 
care, treatment or services are being 
provided or transferred. These include 
name, date of birth and medical record 
(UR) number. In residential care, two 
identifiers are allowed including regularly 

updated photographs. Internal audits 
demonstrate 98% compliance.

Improvements in this area have included 
out of business hours access for 
Registered Nurses to iPM, the Barwon 
Health medical record database. This 
ensures UR generation and retrieval is 
immediate and eliminates opportunities 
for error.
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13. Skin Care

Skin care is essential to good health. As 
people age their skin’s ability to perform its 
barrier function is reduced which can lead to 
infections. Individualised skin care regimes 
and the replacement of soap with new 
best practice emollients has seen positive 
outcomes for inpatients and residents. 
Identified skin tears and lesions are reported 
and monitored as clinical incidents.  

People with reduced mobility are vulnerable 
to pressure injuries.  A range of strategies 
are utilised following individualised 
assessment including the use of pressure 
relieving mattresses, cushions, footwear 
and dressings. Continued vigilance has 
seen Hesse return nil advanced level Stage 
2, 3 or 4 pressure injuries and rates remain 
significantly below statewide average with a 
reduction from nine to six occasions of Stage 
1 injuries over the past year. 

14. Clinical Deterioration
and End of Life

Staff are trained to recognise and 
respond to clinical deterioration and 
to escalate patient care in response. 
Customised two tiered Adult Observation 
and Response Chart (ORC R2 ), red rapid 
response stickers, and clinical review 
forms are utilised with escalation of 
care flowcharts providing guidance. The 
internally designed FIRST information 
brochure encourages family and friends 
to also raise any concerns. 

Advanced Care Plans assist people to 
guide future health directions should 
they be unable to participate in decision 
making. 100% of inpatients and residents 
have received information about 
advanced care planning and been given 
the opportunity for completion. 70% of 
residents have advanced care plans in 
place. 

Hesse offers respectful end of life care in 
an environment that best suits individual 
and family needs.

Advanced Care
Planning in Action

Irene was 86 years old when she came 
to live at Hesse’s residential aged care 
facilities. She told her daughter Judy 
that when the time came she did not 
want to be a burden and wanted  to be 
able to die peacefully in the facilities at 
Winchelsea just as her husband had done 
some years earlier. Judy passed on her 
mother’s comments to the care staff who 
had already suggested Irene may wish to 
complete an Advanced Care Plan. Irene 
appointed Judy as her substitute decision 
maker and included these wishes and 
other preferences for medical intervention 
in her plan which was kept on file. This 
guided medical and nursing staff in her 
final days.

She died peacefully one year later in 
Hesse Lodge nursing home. 

71%
in 2015

70%
in 2016

43%
in 2013

47%
in 2014

Advanced Care
Plans Completed

Visiting Medical Officer Dr. Davor Sepetavc provides medical representation on Hesse’s Clinical 
Review Committee.
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17. External Services
and Equipment

Hesse’s Asset Management Framework 
outlines requirements for planning, 
acquiring, maintaining, replacing and 
disposing of assets and equipment in 
line with current and future needs. All 
assets are listed on an Asset Register 
fully integrated with anticipated life 
expectancy and depreciation schedule.

Hesse’s team of Maintenance Officers 
(1.6 EFT) provide general maintenance 
and equipment monitoring and supervise 
external tradespersons and contractors 
across all sites. Wherever possible 
trades are sourced to support local 

business. Comprehensive administrative 
record systems, effective communication 
and contractor evaluation assists to 
monitor and manage external services. 

Features of the detailed preventative 
maintenance schedule include; an 
equipment monitoring program for 
resident wheelchairs and other mobility 
aids and in-house electrical tag and 
testing. Biomedical equipment is 
maintained through agreement with 
Barwon Health Biomedical Engineering. 

16. Living and Care 
Environment

Hesse’s spacious and tastefully 
decorated living and care environment 
is highly regarded. Of the 55 resident 
rooms, 45 are fully equipped with 
ensuites. Communal areas and non-
ensuited bedrooms are air conditioned. 
Country style meals are prepared on 
the premises. Visitors frequently report 
the fresh and clean atmosphere of the 
internal environment and external garden 
surrounds. Upon resident departure all 
rooms are inspected and refurbished as 
required.  

Recent improvements include: new 
outdoor garden furniture, works of visual 
art, coloured laundry bags to protect 
individual personal laundry, telephone 
access to bedrooms, large screen 
televisions in communal lounges and, 
since Winchelsea’s Darcy Parish was 
recruited to the Essendon Football Club, 
the inclusion of Foxtel in all bedrooms 
without charge. 

15. Preventing Falls and
Harm from Falls

Falls are increasingly common as people 
age and can lead to serious health 
complications. However a balance must 
be achieved between restricting patient 
freedom for independent mobility and 
maintaining patient safety.  As such falls 
are listed as the second item on Hesse’s 
Organisational Risk Register with a 
range of effective controls in place. 

Risk assessments are undertaken upon 
admission and as needed for effective 
clinical management. Strategies utilised 
may include the use of floor level beds, 

motion sensor mats, hip protecting 
garments, mobility aids or referral to 
health professionals to limit causative 
factors. 

Inclusion of falls risk alerts on handover 
tools is a recent improvement and chosen 
in preference to personalised labels 
which may stigmatise. Falls incidents 
are reported, monitored and analysed 
by the Governance Quality and Ethics 
Sub-Committee. A significant reduction 
in total falls has been recorded across 
the acute and residential facility in 2016. 0
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19. Research 
Governance

During the year academic research 
partnerships and collaborations have 
included Deakin University in the 
Business of Aged Care Project; University 
of Tasmania in A Single Approach 
to Achieving Dual Accreditations 
and a tripartite project with La Trobe 
University, Umea University (Sweden) 
and University of Oslo (Norway) in A 
Person-Centred and Thriving Promoting 
Care Model for Residential Aged Care. 
Relevant Ethics Committee approvals 
are in place for the two latter projects and  
endorsed by Hesse’s Quality and Ethics 
Committee.

Andrea Dunlop and Peter Birkett 
were awarded Adjunct Lecturer and 
Senior Adjunct Lecturer appointments 
respectively with La Trobe University 
from 2016 – 2019 in recognition of 
Hesse’s ongoing collaboration with 
LaTrobe and Umea Universities.

ACHS Quality surveyors reflected that 
it is rare for small rural health services 
to undertake research and Hesse’s 
example proves it is possible. Surveyors 
indicated that had the recent EQuIP 
National periodic review allowed for 
awarding of recognition; a ‘Merit’ for 
research governance would have been 
recommended.

20. Supporting
Individual Needs

Additional resources into the Leisure 
and Lifestyle Program have supported 
resident needs in group and individual 
settings with the introduction of a six 
day per week service totalling 126 
hours conducted by four staff.  Outings, 
group activities, including musical 
performances, entertainers, craft, 
quizzes, exercises and celebration of 
popular events such as Pink Ribbon 

Day, AFL Grand Final and the Melbourne 
Cup. Residents are regular entrants in 
the Winchelsea Flower Show and this 
year created ‘bird boxes’. The Auxiliary 
hosted the annual resident Christmas 
party and an ‘Op Shop’ fashion parade 
was popular again.  

Spiritual and emotional support is 
provided by eight visiting pastoral care 

workers with regular non-denominational 
church services.

Leisure and lifestyle planning for each 
resident aims to facilitate independence, 
address physical, emotional, social and 
spiritual needs and maintain community 
access wherever possible. A person 
centred approach embracing ‘thriving’ 
concepts form the basis of the program. 

18. Environmental Safety
and Security

A safe workplace and care environment 
is the aim of robust occupational health 
and safety (OHS) systems. A range 
of resolution pathways inclusive of 
regular OHS Committee meetings with 
Designated Work Group representatives 
ensures timely solutions. Health Safety 
Representative targeted OHS refresher 
training has resulted in new ideas 
such as emergency kits in the vehicle 
fleet inclusive of torch, first aid kit, fire 
extinguisher, emergency hazard triangle 
and the production of vehicle driver 
safety manuals. There were 32 reported 
employee workplace incidents with three 
rated as moderate and requiring medical 
review.

Smart patient lift, manual handling 
and fire safety training are mandated 
programs with 2015 achievement rates 
of 98%, 98% and 97% respectively. 
Elliot’s Fire Services, Hesse’s contracted 
supplier for weekly fire detection system 
maintenance, provided additional fire 
warden training to all Registered Nurses 
who work in an ‘in-charge’ role. 

A closed circuit television (CCTV) system 
is in operation, with 11 cameras focused 
on external entry points and the external 
surrounds. After hours security audit 
result was 94%. There have been no 
identified security breaches in five years. 
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Hesse’s Finance, Resources and Audit Committee is committed to effective business performance and prudent fiscal management. 
The establishment of clear financial strategic priorities has once again led to a strengthening of the balance sheet with an end of 
year Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items surplus of $333,617. The current asset ratio has risen to 0.63 and is well on the 
way to the 0.70 target. It is anticipated that the operating position will advance even further when the recently acquired five aged 
care beds are operationalised.

The two entities, Hesse Rural Health and Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc, continue as a successful business 
partnership, enabling our community to be strongly represented in decisions about their aged care service. Mastery of the 
application of the Aged Care Funding Instrument has ensured revenue from the Commonwealth is accurately applied to meet the 
cost of care needs. New dashboard reporting has enabled a sustained focus on aged care business performance. 

This robust financial position is essential to meeting the capital repayment of the 2010 aged care development project. Challenging 
times ahead may occur as Commonwealth Primary Care funding models are increasingly based on a ‘fee following service’ 
formula, in contrast to our current system that operates on grants in advance. We will be increasingly reliant on detailed profit and 
loss reporting, cash flow analysis and other trending and review data.

The Board wishes to extend their thanks to Davidsons Accounting who has reliably served the organisation for the last 22 years.
I recommend this financial report to you.

Keith Leigh
Treasurer

Page 1

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day. 

MR J. CARR MR P. BIRKETT MR S. WIGHT
Chairperson (on behalf of the Board) Chief Executive Officer Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Winchelsea Winchelsea Winchelsea
Dated: 31 August 2016 Dated: 31 August 2016 Dated: 31 August 2016

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE 

We further state that, in our opinion the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement 
and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2016 and the financial position of Hesse Rural Health Service and the 
Consolidated Entity at 30 June 2016.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

The attached financial statements for Hesse Rural Health Service and the Consolidated Entity have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the 
Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements.

Board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's declaration

Comment and Declaration

Hesse Rural Health Service
Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s and Chief Finance and Accounting Officer’s Declaration
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Revenue from operating activities 2 7,422,008     7,720,908       10,052,422     10,224,983      
Revenue from non-operating activities 2 24,021          13,343            91,773            77,698              
Employee expenses 3 (4,737,921)    (4,550,178)      (6,878,464)      (6,749,154)       
Non salary labour costs 3 (230,791)       (185,988)         (291,674)         (273,785)          
Supplies & consumables 3 (246,428)       (221,777)         (417,525)         (377,712)          
Other expenses 3 (1,918,238)    (1,717,281)      (2,222,915)      (2,120,142)       

312,651        1,059,026       333,617          781,888           

Capital purpose income 2 56,035          36,977            64,705            149,070           
Finance Lease Charges 4 (17,299)         (18,482)           (17,299)           (18,482)            
Depreciation and amortisation 5 (672,061)       (647,638)         (981,473)         (956,541)          
Share of net result of associates and joint ventures 
accounted for using the Equity Method 9 (4,853)           (5,255)             (4,853)             (5,255)              
Net Result after capital and specific items (325,527)       424,628          (605,303)         (49,320)            

2(a) 12,099          985                12,099           985                  
(7,059)           (14,834)           (7,059)             (14,834)            
5,040            (13,849)           5,040              (13,849)            

(320,487)       410,779          (600,263)        (63,169)           

Comprehensive result (320,487)       410,779          (600,263)         (63,169)            

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Net result before capital & specific items

Other economic flows included in net result

Revaluation of Long Service Leave
Total other economic flows included in net result
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

Hesse Rural Health Service
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 148,604        8,902              2,307,908       1,082,912        
Receivables 7 724,570        189,614          754,954          230,919           
Investments and other financial assets 8 725,856        678,285          1,925,856       1,878,285        
Prepayments and Other assets 44,755          25,108            44,755            25,108              

Total Current Assets 1,643,785     901,909          5,033,473       3,217,224        

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 7 302,510        301,839          302,510          301,839           
Investments accounted for using the equity method 9 (9,068)           (4,215)             (9,068)             (4,215)              
Property, plant & equipment 10 8,582,552     8,962,552       13,093,757     13,691,108      

Total Non-Current Assets 8,875,994     9,260,176       13,387,199     13,988,732      

TOTAL ASSETS 10,519,779   10,162,085     18,420,672     17,205,956      

Current Liabilities
Payables 11 826,109        204,043          880,687          216,068           
Borrowings 12 115,691        121,520          115,691          121,520           
Provisions 13 1,271,446     1,210,214       1,969,245       1,766,155        
Other current liabilities 14 1,253,858     1,160,131       4,947,422       3,894,906        

Total Current Liabilities 3,467,104    2,695,908       7,913,045       5,998,649        

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12 157,487        228,967          157,487          228,967           
Provisions 13 226,110        247,646          346,313          374,250           

Total Non-Current Liabilities 383,597        476,613          503,800          603,217           
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,850,702     3,172,521       8,416,845       6,601,866        
NET ASSETS 6,669,077     6,989,564      10,003,827    10,604,090     

EQUITY
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus 15a 1,649,543     1,649,543       3,566,766       3,566,766        
Contributed capital 15b 3,527,113     3,527,113       4,514,616       4,514,616        
Accumulated surpluses 15c 1,492,421     1,812,908       1,922,445       2,522,708        

TOTAL EQUITY 6,669,077     6,989,564      10,003,827    10,604,090     

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities 19
Commitments 18

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Hesse Rural Health Service
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2016
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note

 Property, 
Plant & 

Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributions 

by Owners 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
Consolidated $ $ $ $

Balance at 1July 2014 3,566,766     4,514,616       2,585,877       10,667,259      

Net Result for the year -                    -                      (63,169)           (63,169)            
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                    -                      -                      -                        

Balance at 30 June 2015 15 3,566,766     4,514,616       2,522,708       10,604,090      

-                    -                      (600,263)         (600,263)          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                    -                      -                      -                        

Balance at 30 June 2016 15 3,566,766    4,514,616      1,922,445      10,003,827     

 Property, 
Plant & 

Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributions 

by Owners 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
Parent $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2014 1,649,543     3,527,113      1,402,129      6,578,785       

Net Result for the year -                    -                     410,779         410,779          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                    -                      -                      -                        

Balance at 30 June 2015 1,649,543     3,527,113       1,812,908       6,989,564        

-                    -                      (320,487)         (320,487)          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                    -                      -                      -                        

Balance at 30 June 2016 1,649,543     3,527,113      1,492,421      6,669,077       

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Net Result for the year

Net Result for the year

Hesse Rural Health Service
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating grants from government 5,531,926     5,985,501       7,394,651       7,776,605        
Capital Grants from Government 56,035          36,977            56,035            36,977              
Patient and resident fees received 698,815        602,786          1,472,848       1,284,259        
Donations and bequests received 22,145          7,832              22,145            7,832                
GST received from/(paid to) ATO 124,312        114,494          154,780          154,780           
Interest received 18,152          13,079            87,037            78,567              
Capital Donations  and Bequests Received 8,670            112,093          8,670              112,093           
Other receipts 673,991        910,389          686,105          1,026,082        
Total receipts 7,134,046     7,783,150      9,882,271      10,477,195      

Employee expenses paid (4,698,224)    (4,801,825)      (6,703,311)      (6,738,975)       
Non salary labour costs (293,069)       (275,180)         (293,069)         (275,180)          
Payments for supplies & consumables (276,603)       (219,556)         (447,700)         (375,491)          
Finance Costs (17,299)         (18,482)           (17,299)           (18,482)            
Other payments (1,390,975)    (1,992,441)      (1,744,450)      (2,533,646)       
Total payments (6,676,171)   (7,307,484)     (9,205,829)     (9,941,774)       

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16 457,876       475,666         676,442         535,421          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for non-financial assets (385,129)       (662,595)         (477,190)         (664,122)          
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets 20,800          35,079            20,800            35,079              
Proceeds from sale of investments 55,616          20,208            1,014,405       299,995           

(308,713)       (607,308)         558,015          (329,048)          

149,163        (131,642)         1,234,457      206,372          

(56,579)         75,063            1,017,430       811,058           

6 92,584          (56,579)           2,251,887       1,017,430        

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF 
FINANCIAL YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL 
YEAR

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS HELD

NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Hesse Rural Health Service
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of Compliance

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of the Hesse Rural Health on August 31st, 2016.

(b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

The going concern basis was used to prepare the financial statements.

•

•

•
•
•

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” Health 
Services under the AAS's.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for:

non-current physical assets, which subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount being their fair value at the date 
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made and 
are re-assessed when new indices are published by the Valuer General to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ 
from their fair values;

• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
• Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable
• Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Hesse Rural Health for the period ending 30 
June 2016.  The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the Health Services' stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(j))
superannuration expense (refer to Note 1(g))
assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary 
movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(k))

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994  and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASs), which include interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).  They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB101 Presentation of 
Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and 
Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of 
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016, and the 
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health Service.

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for 
those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The fair value of assets other than land is generally based on their depreciated replacement value.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, Hesse Rural Health determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair 
value measurements such as property, plant and equipment, investment properties and financial instruments, and for non-recurring fair 
value measurements such as non-financial physical assets held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the 
relevant FRDs.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are 
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates relate to: 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Hesse Rural Health Service
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2016
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(c)  Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Hesse Rural Health.

Its principal address is:
8 Gosney Road
WINCHELSEA VIC 3241

Objectives and funding
Hesse Rural Health's overall objective is to improve the quality of life to Victorians.

(d) Principles Of Consolidation
In accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements :

Intersegment Transactions

Associates and joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets or operations

(e) Scope and Presentation of Financial Statements

Fund Accounting

Services Supported by Health Services Agreement and Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives

Associates and joint ventures are accounted for in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 1(j) financial assets.

Entities consolidated into Hesse Rural Health reporting entity include the Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc.

- Control exists when Hesse Rural Health has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account. The consolidated 
financial statements include the audited financial statements of the controlled entities listed in Note 24.

Transactions between segments within Hesse Rural Health have been eliminated to reflect the extent of Hesse Rural Health's operations 
as a group.

Hesse Rural Health is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs.

Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations are not consolidated by Hesse Rural Health, but are accounted for in accordance with 
the policy outlined in Note 1(j) Financial Assets.

Hesse Rural Health operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital Funds.  
Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent capital donations and receipts from fund-raising activities conducted solely in respect 
of these funds.  

The activities classified as Services Supported by Health Services Agreement (HSA)  are substantially funded by the Department of Health 
and includes Residential Aged Care Services (RACS) and are also funded from other sources such as the Commonwealth, patients and 
residents, while Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives (H&CI)  are funded by the Health Service's own activities or 
local initiatives and/or the Commonwealth. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Hesse Rural Health has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Hesse Rural Health determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Hesse Rural Health's independent valuation agency.

Hesse Rural Health, in conjunction with VGV monitors the changes in the fair value of each asset and liability through relevant data 
sources to determine whether revaluation is required.

A description of the nature of Hesse Rural Health's operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which does 
not form part of these financial statements.

- The consolidated financial statements exclude bodies of Hesse Rural Health that are not controlled by Hesse Rural Health, and therefore 
are not consolidated.

- the consolidated financial statements of Hesse Rural Health incorporates the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by Hesse Rural 
Health as at 30 June 2016, and their income and expenses for that part of the reporting period in which control existed; and

Where control of an entity is obtained during the financial period, its results are included in the comprehensive operating statement from 
the date on which control commenced. Where control ceases during a financial period, the entity's results are included for that part of the 
period in which control existed. Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, 
adjustments are made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Residential Aged Care Service

Comprehensive operating statement

Capital and specific items, which are excluded from this sub-total, comprise:

 - Voluntary departure packages
 - Non-Current asset revaluation increments/decrements

   which have been recognised in accordance with Note 1 (i) and (k)

•  assets provided or received free of charge (refer to Note 1 (g) and (h))

Balance Sheet

Statement of changes in equity

Cash flow statement

Rounding

(f) Income from transactions

Government Grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)

Indirect Contributions from the Department of Health

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.

Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or non-current (non-current being those assets or liabilities expected to be 
recovered/settled more that 12 months after reporting period), are disclosed in the notes where relevant.

•  expenditure using capital purpose income, comprises expenditure which either falls below the asset capitalisation threshold or doesn't 
meet asset recognition criteria and therefore does not result in the recognition of an asset in the balance sheet, where funding for that 
expenditure is from capital purpose income.

•  depreciation and amortisation, as described in Note 1 (g)

The comprehensive operating statement includes the subtotal entitled 'net result before capital & specific items' to enhance the 
understanding of the financial performance of the Hesse Rural Health. This subtotal reports the result excluding such items as capital 
grants, assets received or provided free of charge, depreciation, and items of unusual nature and amount such as specific revenues and 
expenses. The exclusion of these items is made to enhance matching of income and expenses so as to facilitate the comparability and 
consistency of results between years and Victorian Public Health Services. The 'net result before capital & specific items' is used by the 
management of the Health Service, the Department of Health and the Victorian Government to measure the ongoing performance of 
Health Services.

The Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home operations are an integral part of Hesse Rural Health  and shares its resources. An 
apportionment of land and buildings has been made based on floor space. The results of the two operations have been segregated based 
on actual revenue earned and expenditure incurred by each operation in note 2b to the financial statements.

The Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home  has a separate Committee of Management and is substantially funded from Commonwealth 
bed-day subsidies.

Other economic flows; are changes arising from market measurements.  They include:
•  gains and lossed from disposals of non-financial assets;
•  revaluations and impairments of non-financial physical and intangible assets;

Consequently the recognition of revenue as capital purpose income is based on the intention of the provider of the revenue at the time the 
revenue is provided.
•  specific income/expense, comprises the following items, where material:

The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner changes in equity from opening balance at the 
beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to 
amounts recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or financing activities. This 
classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows .

- Long Service Leave (LSL) - Revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the arrangements set out 
in the Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospital Circular 05/2013 (update for 2013-14). 

- Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health.

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the Health Service has a present obligation to repay them and the present 
obligation can be reliably measured.

•  fair value changes of financial instruments.

•  impairment of financial and non-financial assets including all impairment losses (and reversal of previous impairment losses)

•  capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and bequests received for the purpose of acquiring non-current 
assets, such as capital works or plant and equipment. It also includes donations of plant and equipment.

All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest dollar unless otherwise stated.  Minor discrepancies in tables 
between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Hesse Rural Health and the income can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income at reporting date is 
reported as income received in advance. 

In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions , government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners) are 
recognised as income when the Health Service gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on 
the Health Service’s use of the contributions.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Donations and Bequests

Interest Revenue

Sale of investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is recognised when the investment is realised.

Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

(g) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• wages and salaries;
• fringe benefits tax;
• annual leave;
• sick leave;
• long service leave; and
• superannuation expenses which are reported differently depending upon whether employees are members of defined 

    benefit or defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plans

Depreciation

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.
2016 2015

Buildings
 - Structure Shell Building Fabric Up to 60 years Up to 60 years
 - Site Engineering Services and Central Plant Up to 30 years Up to 30 years
Central Plant 
 - Fit Out Up to 30 years Up to 30 years
 - Trunk Reticulated Building Systems Up to 40 years Up to 40 years
Plant & Equipment Up to 15 years Up to 15 years
Medical Equipment Up to 15 years Up to 15 years
Computers & Communications Up to 15 years Up to 15 years
Furniture & Fittings Up to 15 years Up to 15 years
Motor Vehicles Up to 7 years Up to 7 years
Leasehold Improvements Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate their 
cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives. 

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its useful life which 
is represented above. 

Other income
Other income includes non-property rental, dividends, forgiveness of liabilities, and bad debt reversals.

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets that have finite useful lives are 
depreciated (i.e. excludes land assets held for sale, and investment properties).  Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use, 
which is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner intended by management.

In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions 
that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined 
contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset, which allocates 
interest over the relevant period.

Intangible produced assets with finite lives are depreciated as an expense from transactions on a systematic basis over the asset's useful 
life.  Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value 
over its estimated useful life.  Estimates of the remaining useful lives, residual value and depreciation method for all assets are reviewed 
at least annually, and adjustments made where appropriate.  This depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Health & 
Human Services.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special purpose, they may be appropriated to a 
reserve, such as the specific restricted purpose surplus.

Resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control over 
them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from another Health 
Service or agency as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such transfer will be recognised 
at carrying value. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services 
would have been purchased if not received as a donation.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Supplies and consumables

(h) Other economic flows included in net results

(i)

Categories of non-derivative financial instruments

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Bad and doubtful debts

Loans and receivables category includes cash and deposits (refer to Note 1(j)), term deposits with maturity greater than three months, 
trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.

Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of the Health Service’s contractual payables, deposits held and 
advances received, and interest-bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying 
amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

Refer to Note 1 (j) Impairment of financial assets.

Other operating expenses

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of the Hesse Rural Health’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise 
under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in 
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. For example, statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the 
definition of financial instruments as they do not arise under contract. 
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.

Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the 
transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, 
unless received from another agency as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such a 
transfer will be recognised at its carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have 
been purchased if not donated.

Financial instruments

Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any 
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with 
any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the 
interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include:

Other economic flow are changes in the volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result from transactions.

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:

Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-current physical assets
Refer to Note 1(j) Revaluations of non-current physical assets .

Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal and is the difference between the 
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset at the time.

Share of net profits/ (losses) of associates and jointly controlled entities, excluding dividends.
Refer to Note 1 (d) Basis of consolidation.

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows
Other gains/ (losses) include:
a. the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates, this will also 
include the impact of changes to the impact of moving from the 2004 long service leave model to the 2008 long service leave model; 
and
b. transfer of amounts from the reserves to accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or derecognition or reclassification.

Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market. 
These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. 

Fair value of assets, services and resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(j)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables consist of:

- Contractual receivables, which includes mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third parties, accrued 
  investment income, and finance lease receivables.

Investment and Other Financial Assets

Investments are classified in the following categories:
- Loans and receivables

The Health Service assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant, Equipment and Vehicles  are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for fair value because of the short lives of the assets concerned.

Land and Buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment.

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss are subject to annual review for impairment.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition.  Collectability of 
debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off.  A provision for doubtful debts is 
recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified.

Hospital investments must be in accordance in Standing Direction 4.5.6 – Treasury Risk Management. Investments are recognised and 
derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment 
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

- Statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
input tax credits recoverable; and

Hesse Rural Health classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the purpose for which the assets 
were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its other financial assets at initial recognition.

The value of supplies held at balance date is not considered to be material. The cost of supplies is charged to operating expenses when 
incurred.

All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as 
part of a merger/machinery of government are transferred at their carrying amount.
More details about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of non-financial physical assets are discussed in 
Note 9 Property, plant and equipment.

Crown Land  is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or 
physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the land. 
Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any 
restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their 
highest and best uses.

Inventories

For the cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, which are included as current 
borrowings in the balance sheet.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, 
less any accumulated impairment. 

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid 
investments (with an original maturity of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments 
rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

Assets

Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables. Statutory receivables 
are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments 
because they do not arise from a contract.
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Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets

Prepayments

Disposal of non-financial Assets

Impairment of non-financial Assets

• financial assets;
• investment property that is measured at fair value; and
• non-current physical assets held for sale.

An associate is an entity over which Hesse Rural Health exercised significant influence, but not control.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within 
that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

In accordance with FRD 103F Hesse Rural Health's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether revaluation of the 
non-current physical assets was required.  As movements were assessed to be less than 10% no revaluation was required in the current 
year. 

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of 
expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.

All other non-finanical assets are tested annually for indications of impairment except for:

If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their possible 
recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written-off as an expense except 
to the extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset revaluation surplus amount applicable to that same class of asset.

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD103F Non-current physical assets .  This 
revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset's Government Purpose Classification, but may occur 
more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled 
revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or 
decrements arise from differences between an asset's carrying value and fair value.

If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal of the impairment loss occurs only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years. 

Revaluation surplus is not normally not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require unaminous consent of the parties sharing control. Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby Hesse Rural Health, via 
its joint control of the arrangement, has rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ and are credited directly in equity to the asset revaluation 
surplus, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously 
recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the net result.

The investment in the associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.  Under the equity method for accounting, the 
investment in the associate is recognised at cost on initial recognition, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased in subsequent 
years to recognise Hesse Rural Health's share of the profits or losses of the associates after the date of acquisition.  Hesse Rural Health's 
share of the associate's profit or loss is recognised in Hesse Rural Health's net result as "other economic flows".  The share of post-
acquisition changes in revaluation surpluses and any other reserves, are recognised in both the comprehensive operating statement and 
the statement of changes in equity.  The cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted againsts the carrying amount of the 
investment, including dividends received or receivable from the associate.

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be 
replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made.  The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of 
depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows 
is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell. 

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method, as applied to investments in associates. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation 
surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment. 

Investments accounted for using the equity method

Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement. Refer to note 1(h) – 
‘comprehensive income’. 
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- its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
- any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred;
- its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
- its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and
- its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Derecognition of financial assets

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• the Health Service has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: 
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

Impairment of financial assets

Net Gain/(Loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes:
- realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments that are designated at fair value through 
  profit or loss or held-for-trading;
- impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost; and
- disposals of financial assets.

Revaluations of financial instruments at fair value

(k)

Payables consist of:

Provisions

• statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third party, the receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Liabilities

Payables

Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently carried at 
amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial 
instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.

Provisions are recognised when the health service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the 
amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.  Where a provision is measured using the cashflows estimated 
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time 
value of money and risks specific to the provision.

• contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Health Service prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when the health service becomes obliged to make future 
payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.  The normal credit terms are usually Nett 30 days. 

The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is 
applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of 
Assets .

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered as written off and allowances for doubtful 
receivables are expensed. Bad debt written off by mutual consent and the allowance for doubtful debts are classified as ‘other 
comprehensive income’ in the net result.

At the end of each reporting period Hesse Rural Health assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial asset is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual 
review for impairment.

• the Health Service retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without 
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or 

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Health Service has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset is 
recognised to the extent of the Health Service’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Investments in joint operations
In respect of any interest in joint operations, Hesse Rural Health recognises in the financial statements: 

The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value excludes dividends or interest earned on financial assets.

Where the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 per cent or more than its cost price or 
where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more months, the financial instrument is treated as impaired.
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Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off

Long Service Leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
• Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and
• Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Termination Benefits

Superannuation Liabilities

(l) Leases

Finance Leases
Entity as lessee

Operating Leases
Entity as lessee

Leasehold Improvements

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are classified at their inception as either 
operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.

The health service recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of 
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of 
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are 
discounted to present value.

On-Costs

Employee Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides 
to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

This provision arises for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services 
rendered to the reporting date.

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service does not 
expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement 
should an employee take leave within 12 months.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until 
the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.

Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the 
extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as an other economic flow.

Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payment, each determined at the inception of the lease. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between reduction of the outstanding 
lease liability, and the periodic finance expense which is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, and charged directly to the 
comprehensive operating statement. Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive operating statement on 
a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits 
derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in the balance sheet.

The cost of leasehold improvements are capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the remaining term of the lease or the estimated 
useful life of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.

Employee benefit on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised together with provisions 
for employee benefits.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave are 
measured at:
• Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
• Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave are all recognised in 
the provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, because the health service does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlements of these liabilities.

Hesse Rural Health does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the superannuation plans because the Health 
Service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation 
contributions as they fall due. 
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(m) Equity

Contributed Capital

 Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current physical assets.

(n)  Commitments

(o)  Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

(p)  

Commitments for expenditure and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as an operating cash flow.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from or 
payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority. In this case, the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, 
are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable 
respectively.

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed 
by way of a note (refer to note 18) at their nominal value and are inclusive of the GST payable.  In addition, where it is considered 
appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. 
These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.

Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities and 
FRD 119A Contributions by Owners, appropriations for additions to the net asset base have been designated as contributed capital. Other 
transfers that are in the nature of contributions to or distributions by owners that have been designated as contributed capital are also 
treated as contributed capital.
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(q) AASs issued that are not yet effective

Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 

beginning on 

1-Jan-17

1 Jan 2017

(Exposure 
Draft 263 – 

potential 
deferral to 1 
Jan 2018)

1-Jan-16

1-Jan-16

1-Jan-16

1 Jan 2016

(r) Category Groups

Certain new accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2016 reporting period. DTF assesses the 
impact of all these new standards and advises the Health Service of their applicability and early adoption where applicable. 

Hesse Rural Health has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the current and previous financial years.

As at 30 June 2016, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by AASB but were not yet effective.  They become 
effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as detailed in the table below.  
Hesse Rural Health has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.

AASB 9 Financial instruments This standard simplifies requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets 
resulting from Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to 
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement  (AASB 139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement ).

The preliminary assessment has identified that the 
financial impact of available for sale (AFS) assets will 
now be reported through other comprehensive income 
(OCI) and no longer recycled to the profit and loss. 

Hesse Rural Health does not currently hold available for 
sale financial assets and therefore therefore assesses 
there to be no impact.

STATEMENT

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to 
recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a 
performance obligation by transferring a promised 
good or service to a customer.

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in 
AASB 15 may result in changes to the timing and 
amount of revenue recorded in the financial statements. 
The Standard will also require additional disclosures on 
service revenue and contract modifications. 

AASB 2014 10 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its 
A i t   J i t V t  [AASB 10 

AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates to ensure consistent treatment in dealing 
with the sale or contribution of assets between an 
i t  d it  i t   j i t t  Th  

The assessment has indicated that there is limited 
impact, as the revisions to AASB 10 and AASB 128 are 
guidance in nature.

AASB 2014 4 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Clarification of Acceptable Methods 
of Depreciation and Amortisation
[AASB 116 & AASB 138]

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment 
and AASB 138 Intangible Assets to:
• establish the principle for the basis of depreciation 
and amortisation as being the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits of an 
asset;
• prohibit the use of revenue based methods to 
calculate the depreciation or amortisation of an asset, 
tangible or intangible, because revenue generally 
reflects the pattern of economic benefits that are 
generated from operating the business, rather than 
the consumption through the use of the asset.

The assessment has indicated that there is no expected 
impact as the revenue-based method is not used for 
depreciation and amortisation. 

AASB 2014 9 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Equity Method in Separate Financial 
Statements 
[AASB 1, 127 & 128]

Amends AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements to 
allow entities to use the equity method of accounting 
for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates in their separate financial statements.

The assessment indicates that there is no expected 
impact as the entity will continue to account for the  
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates using the cost method as mandated if 
separate financial statements are presented in 
accordance with FRD 113A.

AASB 2015 6 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Extending Related Party Disclosures 
to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities
[AASB 10, AASB 124 & AASB 1049]

The Amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 
Related Party Disclosures to not-for-profit public 
sector entities.  A guidance has been included to 
assist the application of the Standard by not-for-profit 
public sector entities. 

The amending standard will result in extended 
disclosures on the entity's key management personnel 
(KMP), and the related party transactions. 

Other Services not reported elsewhere (Other) comprises revenue/expenditure for services not separately classified above, including: 
Public health services including Laboratory testing, Blood Borne Viruses / Sexually Transmitted Infections clinical services, Kooris liaison 
officers, immunisation and screening services, Drugs services including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syringe program, 
Dental Health services including general and specialist dental care, school dental services and clinical education, Disability services 
including aids and equipment and flexible support packages to people with a disability, Community Care programs including sexual assault 
support, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills development, and various support services.  Health and Community 
Initiatives also falls in this category group.

Aged Care comprises a range of in home, specialist geriatric, residential care and community based programs and support services, such 
as Home and Community Care (HACC) that are targeted to older people, people with a disability, and their carers.

Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) comprises all acute and subacute admitted patient services, where services are delivered in 
public hospitals.

Standard / Interpretation Impact on public sector entity financial statements

Primary Health comprises revenue/expenditure for Community Health Services including health promotion and counselling, physiotherapy, 
speech therapy, podiatry and occupational therapy.

Residential Aged Care including Mental Health (RAC incl. Mental Health) referred to in the past as psychogeriatric residential services, 
comprises those Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services in receipt of supplementary funding from DH under the mental 
health program.  It excludes all other residential services funded under the mental health program, such as mental health funded 
community care units (CCUs) and secure extended care units (SECs).
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Note 2:   Analysis of Revenue by Source Admitted Primary
Patients RAC Aged Care Health Other Total

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
$ $ $ $ $ $

Government Grants 1,885,349 3,892,473 979,733 590,541 - 7,348,096
9,562 - - - - 9,562

Patient and Resident Fees 131,936 1,338,669 - - - 1,470,605
Donations & Bequests (non capital) 14,302 3,000 - 4,843 - 22,145
SWARH revenue from jointly controlled assets 933,854 - - - - 933,854
Other Revenue from Operating Activities 84,815 7,451 110,438 65,456 - 268,160

3,059,818 5,241,593 1,090,171 660,840 - 10,052,422

Interest 12,359 79,414 - - - 91,773
Other Revenue from Non-Operating Actitivies - - - - - -
Total revenue from Non-Operating Activies 12,359 79,414 - - - 91,773

Capital Purpose Income (excluding interest) 56,035 8,670 - - - 64,705
Total Capital Purpose Income 56,035 8,670 - - - 64,705

Share of net result of Joint Ventures Accounted for
using the Equity Model (refer note 9) - - - - (4,853) (4,853)

Total Revenue 3,128,212 5,329,677 1,090,171 660,840 (4,853) 10,204,047

Admitted Primary
Patients RAC Aged Care Health Other Total

2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
$ $ $ $ $ $

Government Grants 2,058,939 4,246,352 934,659 545,941 - 7,785,891
66,217 - - - - 66,217

Patient and Resident Fees 46,598 1,268,591 - - - 1,315,190
Donations & Bequests (non capital) 7,832 - - - - 7,832
SWARH revenue from jointly controlled assets 790,013 - - - - 790,013
Other Revenue from Operating Activities 123,809 7,506 93,966 34,560 - 259,840

3,093,408 5,522,449 1,028,625 580,500 - 10,224,983

Interest 4,123 69,625 2,693 1,257 - 77,698
Other - - - - - -
Total revenue from Non-Operating Activies 4,123 69,625 2,693 1,257 - 77,698

Capital Purpose Income (excluding interest) 36,977 112,093 - - - 149,070
Total Capital Purpose Income 36,977 112,093 - - - 149,070

Share of net result of Joint Ventures Accounted for
using the Equity Model (refer note 9) - - - - (5,255) (5,255)

Total Revenue 3,134,508 5,704,167 1,031,318 581,757 (5,255) 10,446,496

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 2a: Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets 2016 2015

$ $
Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
Motor Vehicles 18,600 35,079
Plant and Equipment 2,200 -
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Assets 20,800 35,079

  Less: Written-Down Value of Assets Sold
Motor Vehicles 8,701 34,094
Plant and Equipment - -

Total Written-Down Value of Assets Sold 8,701 34,094

Net gains/(losses) on disposal 12,099 985

Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of the Health Service.  These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and 
expenses.

Total revenue from Operating Activities

Total revenue from Operating Activities

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human 
Services

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human 
Services

NOTE 2: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE

NOTE 2a: NET GAIN(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
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Note 3: Analysis of Expenses by Source Admitted Aged Primary 
Patients RAC Care Health Other Total

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
$ $ $ $ $ $

Employee Expenses 1,254,566 4,041,492 596,591 985,815 - 6,878,464
Non Salary Labour Costs 115,010 170,307 4,334 2,023 - 291,674
Supplies & Consumables 100,577 307,665 1,492 7,791 - 417,525
Other Expenses 1,206,402 666,158 114,263 236,092 - 2,222,915

2,676,555 5,185,622 716,680 1,231,721 - 9,810,578

17,299 - - - - 17,299
Depreciation  & Amortisation (refer note 5) 672,061 309,412 - - - 981,473

689,360 309,412 - - - 998,772

Total Expenses 3,365,915 5,495,034 716,680 1,231,721 - 10,809,350

Admitted Aged Primary 
Patients RAC Care Health Other Total

2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
$ $ $ $ $ $

Employee Benefits 1,179,118 3,994,138 740,520 835,378 - 6,749,154
Non Salary Labour Costs 123,554 149,630 - 600 - 273,785
Supplies & Consumables 101,107 272,687 699 3,220 - 377,712
Other Expenses 1,084,267 704,113 110,603 221,159 - 2,120,142

2,488,046 5,120,568 851,822 1,060,358 - 9,520,793

18,482 0 - - - 18,482
Depreciation  & Amortisation (refer note 5) 647,638 308,903 - - - 956,541

666,120 308,903 - - - 975,023

Total Expenses 3,154,166 5,429,471 851,822 1,060,358 - 10,495,816

NOTE 4:   Finance Costs Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

$ $
Finance charges on SWARH finance leases 17,299 18,482
Total Finance Costs 17,299 18,482

NOTE 5:   Depreciation and Amortisation Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

$ $
Buildings 668,944 663,894
Plant & Equipment 153,042 154,823
Medical Equipment 16,781 15,984
Leased Equipment 142,706 121,840
Total Depreciation 981,473 956,541

NOTE 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

$ $
Cash on Hand (621) (621)
Cash at Bank 2,308,529 1,083,533
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,307,908 1,082,912

Represented by:
Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement) 2,251,886 1,017,430
Cash for Monies Held in Trust
    - Deposits at Call 56,022 65,482
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,307,908 1,082,912

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

Expenditure for Capital Purposes

Total other expenses

Finance Lease Costs

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, 
and short-term deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to 
insignificant risk of change in value, net of outstanding overdrafts.

Total other expenses

NOTE 3: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY SOURCE

NOTE 4: FINANCE COSTS

NOTE 5: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

NOTE 6: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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NOTE 7: Receivables Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

CURRENT $ $
Contractual
Patient Fees 75,839 78,082
Trade Debtors 607,118 89,149
Accrued Investment Income 7,835 3,099
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
   Patient Fees (5,709) -

685,083 170,330
Statutory
GST Receivable 50,925 51,304
Commonwealth Subsidies 18,946 -
Accrued Revenue - Department of Health - 9,285

69,871 60,589
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 754,954 230,919

NON-CURRENT
Statutory
 Long Service Leave - Department of Health 302,510 301,839
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 302,510 301,839
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 1,057,464 532,758

(a) Ageing of Receivables
Please refer to note 17 (c) for the ageing analysis of receivables

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from Receivables
Please refer to note 17 (c) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from receivables

NOTE 8: Investments and other Financial Assets
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

CURRENT $ $ $ $ $ $
Loans and receivables
Term Deposit

Aust. Dollar Term Deposits > 3 months 1,925,856 1,878,285 - - 1,925,856 1,878,285
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 1,925,856 1,878,285 - - 1,925,856 1,878,285

Represented by:
Refundable entrance fees 1,925,856 1,878,285 - - 1,925,856 1,878,285

1,925,856 1,878,285 - - 1,925,856 1,878,285
(a) Ageing of Other Financial Assets
Please refer to note 17 (c) for the ageing analysis of Other Financial Assets

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from other financial assets
Please refer to note 17 (c) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from Other Financial Assets

NOTE 9: Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

$ $
Investments in Associates (9,068) (4,215)
Total (9,068) (4,215)

Country
Name of Entity Principal Activity of 2016 2015 2016 2015

Incorporation % % $ $
Associates
Winchelsea Medical Clinic Pty Ltd Medical Clinic Australia 50.00% 50.00% (9,068) (4,215)

Consol'd Consol'd
Summarised Financial Information of Associates 2016 2015

$ $
Current Assets 149,840 209,557
Total Assets 149,840 209,557

Current Liabilities 166,478 214,645
Non-Current Liabilities 1,497 3,344
Total Liabilities 167,975 217,989
Net Assets (18,135) (8,432)
Share of Associates Net Assets (9,068) (4,216)

Total Income 1,416,158 1,548,521
Net Result (9,706) (10,036)
Share of Associates' Result after Income Tax (4,853) (5,255)
Distributions received from Associates 50,000 75,000

Ownership Interest Published Fair Value

Operating Fund Capital Fund Consolidated

NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES

NOTE 8: INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTE 9: INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
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NOTE 10: Property, plant & equipment Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation $ $
Land
Land at fair value 2,050,394 1,892,243
Total Land 2,050,394 1,892,243

Buildings
Buildings at Fair Value 11,462,700 11,443,500

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,332,838 663,894
Total Buildings 10,129,862 10,779,606

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at fair value 1,404,221 2,744,395

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 793,552 2,108,909
Total Plant and Equipment 610,669 635,486

Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at fair value 90,190 327,663

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 65,345 294,377
Total Medical Equipment 24,845 33,286

Leased Assets
Share of SWARH Joint Venture Leased Assets at cost 542,533 472,327

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 264,546 121,840
Total Leased Assets 277,987 350,487

TOTAL 13,093,757 13,691,108

Plant & Medical Leased Total
Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Assets Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2014 1,629,500 11,443,500 554,425 39,709 - 13,667,134
Additions 262,743 269,978 9,561 472,327 1,014,609
Disposals - (34,094) - (34,094)
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements) - - - - -
Depreciation Expense (Note 5) - (663,894) (154,823) (15,984) (121,840) (956,541)
Balance at 1 July 2015 1,892,243 10,779,606 635,486 33,286 350,487 13,691,108

Additions 158,151 19,200 136,926 8,340 70,206 392,823
Disposals - - (8,701) - - (8,701)
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements) - - - - - -
Depreciation Expense (Note 5) - (668,944) (153,042) (16,781) (142,706) (981,473)
Balance at 30 June 2016 2,050,394 10,129,862 610,669 24,845 277,987 13,093,757

Land and buildings carried at valuation

( c) Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets as at 30 June 2016

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Land at fair value
Specialised land 2,050,394 - - 2,050,394
Total of land at fair value 2,050,394 - - 2,050,394

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings 10,129,862 - - 10,129,862
Total of buildings at fair value 10,129,862 - - 10,129,862

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value
- Vehicles 192,431 - 192,431 -
- Plant and equipment 418,238 - - 418,238
Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value 610,669 - 192,431 418,238

Medical equipment at fair value
- Medical equipment 24,845 - - 24,845
Total medical equipment at fair value 24,845 - - 24,845

Leased assets at fair value
- SWARH leased assets 277,987 - - 277,987
Total  leased assets at fair value 277,987 - - 277,987

13,093,757 - 192,431 12,901,326

(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

An Independent valuation of the Health Service's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. 
The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2016

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
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NOTE 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

( c) Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets as at 30 June 2015

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Land at fair value
Specialised land 1,892,243 - - 1,892,243
Total of land at fair value 1,892,243 - - 1,892,243

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings 10,779,606 - - 10,779,606
Total of buildings at fair value 10,779,606 - - 10,779,606

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value
- Vehicles 133,304 - 133,304 -
- Plant and equipment 502,182 - - 502,182
Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value 635,486 - 133,304 502,182

Medical equipment at fair value
- Medical equipment 33,286 - - 33,286
Total medical equipment at fair value 33,286 - - 33,286

Leased assets at fair value
- SWARH leased assets 350,487 - - 350,487
Total  leased assets at fair value 350,487 - - 350,487

13,691,108 - 133,304 13,557,804
Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Vehicles

Plant and equipment

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2016.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered to be the highest and best use.

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

$ $ $ $ $

Opening Balance 1,892,243 10,779,606 502,182 33,286 350,487
Purchases (sales) 158,151 19,200 24,441 8,340 70,206
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 - - - - -
Gains or losses recognised in net result - - - - -
- Depreciation - (668,944) (108,385) (16,781) (142,706)

- - - - -
Subtotal 2,050,394 10,129,862 418,238 24,845 277,987

2,050,394 10,129,862 418,238 24,845 277,987

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2015

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised 
nature of the asset being valued.  Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market 
based direct comparison approach.  The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer's assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that 
is also equally applicable to market participants.  This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into 
account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissable and financially feasible.  As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable 
inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets.  For the Health Services, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised 
buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation.  As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings 
are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

An independent valuation of Hesse Rural Health Services' specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria.  The valuation was 
performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO.  The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

Hesse Rural Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life.  The process of acquisition, use and disposal 
in the market is managed by Hesse Rural Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles.  As a result, the fair 
value of vehicles does not differ materially from the carrying value (depreciated cost).

Plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated cost).  When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going 
concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value.  Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different 
from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying value.  

Buildings
Plant and 
equipment

Medical 
equipment Leased Assets

2016

Land

- Impairment loss

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Continued)
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NOTE 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

$ $ $ $ $

Opening Balance 1,892,243 10,779,606 502,182 39,709 -
Purchases (sales) - 663,894 122,603 9,561 472,327
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 - - - - -
Gains or losses recognised in net result - - - - -
- Depreciation - (663,894) (122,603) (15,984) (121,840)

- - - - -
Subtotal 1,892,243 10,779,606 502,182 33,286 350,487

1,892,243 10,779,606 502,182 33,286 350,487

(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations:

Specialised land

Specialised buildings
Hospital Complex and Nursing Home
Community Health Centres

Plant and equipment at fair value

Vehicles 

Medical equipment at fair value

NOTE 11:   Payables Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

CURRENT $ $
Contractual
Trade Creditors 684,212 178,702
Accrued Expenses 29,400 31,000
Commonwealth subsidies 47,805 6,366

761,417 216,068
Statutory
Department of Health and Human Services 119,270 -
Total Current 880,687 216,068
TOTAL PAYABLES 880,687 216,068

(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to note 17d for the ageing analysis of payables

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Please refer to note 17d for the nature and extent of risks arising from payables

 Useful life of medical equipment 

 Market approach 

 Depreciated replacement cost 

Valuation technique 

 Depreciated replacement cost 

 Depreciated replacement cost    

 Depreciated replacement cost 

Significant unobservable inputs 

 Community Service Obligation 
(CSO) adjustment 

 Direct cost per square metre 

 Useful life of specialised buildings 

 Cost per unit 

 Useful life of PPE 

 Cost per unit 

 Useful life of vehicles 

 Cost per unit 

- Impairment loss

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Land
Plant and 
equipment

Medical 
equipment Leased Assets

2015

Buildings

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Continued)
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NOTE 12:   Borrowings Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

Current $ $
- Finance Lease Liability (i) 115,691 121,520
Total Current 115,691 121,520

Non-Current
- Finance Lease Liability (i) 157,487 228,967
Total Non-Current 157,487 228,967

TOTAL BORROWINGS 273,178 350,487

(i)  Hesse Rural Health's share of finance lease liabilities undertaken by the SWARH joint arrangement.

NOTE 13:   Provisions Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

Current Provisions $ $
Employee Benefits *
Annual Leave

391,026 532,193
317,315 200,121

Long Service Leave
87,902 101,545

579,096 535,632
Accrued Wages

274,068 176,285
Accrued Days Off

23,983 8,580
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised within 12 months (nominal value) 201,931 119,707
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised after 12 months (present value) 93,924 92,092
Total Current Provisions 1,969,245 1,766,155

Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (present value)* 311,954 336,826
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs 34,359 37,425
Total Non-Current Provisions 346,313 374,251

Total Provisions 2,315,558 2,140,406

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 746,694 707,974
Accrued Wages and Salaries 307,942 198,073
Annual Leave 890,626 851,528
Accrued Days Off 23,983 8,580
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (present value) 346,313 374,251
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 2,315,558 2,140,406

(b) Movements in Provisions:

Movements in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year 1,082,225 1,004,526
Provision made during the year
- Revaluations 7,059 14,833
- Expense recognising Employee Service 131,286 173,133
Settlement made during the year (127,563) (110,267)
Balance at end of year 1,093,007 1,082,225

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

NOTE 12: BORROWINGS

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS
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NOTE 14:   Other Liabilities Consol'd Consol'd
CURRENT 2016 2015
Monies Held in Trust $ $

Resident Monies held in Trust 56,022 65,482
Refundable Entrance Fees 4,891,400 3,829,424

Total Other Liabilities 4,947,422 3,894,906

Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer to Note 6) 56,022 65,482
Term Deposits (refer to Note 8) 1,925,856 1,878,285
Land and Buildings 2,965,544 1,951,139
TOTAL 4,947,422 3,894,906

NOTE 15:   Equity Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

(a) Surpluses $ $
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 3,566,766 3,566,766
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)

 - Land - -
 - Buildings - -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 3,566,766 3,566,766
Represented by:

 - Land 947,565 947,565
 - Buildings 2,619,201 2,619,201

3,566,766 3,566,766
(b) Contributed Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 4,514,616 4,514,616
Balance at the end of the reporting period 4,514,616 4,514,616

(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
Retained Surplus at the beginning of the reporting period 2,522,708 2,585,877
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (600,263) (63,169)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,922,445 2,522,708

 Total Equity at end of financial year 10,003,827 10,604,090

Consol'd Consol'd

2016 2015
$ $

Net Result for the Year (600,263) (63,169)

Non-Cash Movements
Depreciation 981,473 956,541
Revaluation of LSL provision 7,059 -
Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (gain)/loss from disposal of non financial physical assets (12,099) (985)
Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 664,619 (266,420)
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements 175,153 25,013
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (524,706) (133,563)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 4,853 5,255
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (19,647) 12,749

Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities 676,442 535,421

NOTE 17:   Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Health Service's principal financial instruments comprise of:

 - Cash Assets
 - Term Deposits
 - Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
 - Payables (excluding statutory payables)
 - Accommodation Bonds

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage the Health Service's financial risks within the government policy parameters.

NOTE 16:   Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Infflow / (Outflow) 
from Operating Activities

The Health Service's main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.  The Health Service manages these financial risks in accordance with its 
financial risk management policy.

The Health Service uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed.  Primary responsibility for the identification and 
management of financial risks rests with the finance committee of the Health Service.

NOTE 14: OTHER LIABILITIES

NOTE 15: EQUITY

NOTE 16: RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR TO NET CASH
INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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NOTE 17:   Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Categorisation of Financial Instruments

2016 2015
Note $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 2,307,908 1,082,912
Loans and Receivables 7 685,083 170,330
Other Financial Assets 8 Loans and receivables 1,925,856 1,878,285
Total Financial Assets 4,918,847 3,131,527
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost 11,12,13 5,982,017 4,461,461
Total Financial Liabilities 5,982,017 4,461,461

(c) Credit Risk

Ageing analysis of financial assets as at 30 June 
Not

Consolidated Past Due Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Over 5 Impaired
Carrying And Not 1 Month Months 1 Year Years Years Financial
Amount Impaired Assets

2016 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,307,908 2,307,908 - - - - - -
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 607,118 607,118 - - - - - -
 - Other Receivables 77,965 16,730 32,578 9,591 19,066 - - -
Other Financial Assets - Term Deposit 1,925,856 1,925,856 - - - - - -
Total Financial Assets 4,918,847 4,857,612 32,578 9,591 19,066 - - -

2015 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,082,912 1,082,912 - - - - - -
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 89,149 89,149 - - - - - -
 - Other Receivables 81,181 33,960 9,607 6,409 31,205 - - -
Other Financial Assets - Term Deposit 1,878,285 1,878,285 - - - - - -
Total Financial Assets 3,131,527 3,084,306 9,607 6,409 31,205 - - -

(d) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Health Service would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Consolidated

No net holding gain or loss was made in respect of any of the above categories of financial instruments with the exception of interest revenue which is disclosed in note 
2.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the 
financial statements. The health service does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under financial instruments 
entered into by the entity.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. The Health Service does not hold any collateral as security nor credit 
enhancements relating to any of its financial assets.

In addition, the Health Service does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest, 
except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, the Health Service’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.

Carrying Amount

Credit risk associated with the Health Service’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For debtors other than the 
Government, it is the Health Service’s policy to deal where possible with entities with high credit ratings. Trade and Other receivables that are not either past due nor 
impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. 

Past Due But Not Impaired

Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Health Service will not be able to collect a receivable. 
Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.

Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of the Health Service, which comprise cash and deposits, non-statutory receivables and available for sale 
contractual financial assets as listed in the table below. The Health Service’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on their 
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Health Service. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.

There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts 
as indicated. The ageing analysis table above discloses the ageing only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

The Health Service’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet. The Health Service 
manages its liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that liquid assets are available.

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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NOTE 17:   Financial Instruments (continued)

Maturity Analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June
Consolidated

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Over 5
Amount Cash Flows 1 Month Months 1 Year Years Years

2016 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Payables        761,417 761,417 761,417 - - -
Borrowings        273,178 - - - - 273,178
Accommodation Bonds     4,947,422 4,947,422 - - - 4,947,422 -
Total Financial Liabilities     5,982,017        5,708,839         761,417                     -                   -       5,220,600                     -

2015
Payables        216,068 216,068 216,068 - - - -
Borrowings        350,487 - - - - 350,487
Accommodation Bonds     3,894,906 - - - - 3,894,906 -
Total Financial Liabilities     4,461,461           216,068         216,068                     -                   -       4,245,393                     -

(e) Market Risk
The Health Service's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to foreign currency and other 
price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed below.

Currency Risk
The Health Service has no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June 
Weighted Interest Rate Exposure
Average Consolidated Fixed Variable Non
Interest Carrying Interest Interest Interest

Rates Amount Rate Rate Bearing
2016 % $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.50 2,307,908 - 2,308,529 (621)
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 0.00 607,118 - - 607,118
 - Other Receivables 0.00 77,965 - - 77,965
Other Financial Assets - Term Deposit 2.75 1,925,856 1,925,856 - -
Total Financial Assets 4,918,847 1,925,856 2,308,529 684,462
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00 761,417 - - 761,417
Borrowings 9.40 273,178 273,178 - -
Accommodation Bonds 0.00 4,947,422 - - 4,947,422
Total Financial Liabilities 5,982,017 273,178 - 5,708,839
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.50 1,082,912 - 1,083,533 (621)
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 0.00 89,149 - - 89,149
 - Other Receivables 0.00 81,181 - - 81,181
Other Financial Assets 2.75 1,878,285 1,878,285 - -
Total Financial Assets 3,131,527 1,878,285 1,083,533 169,709
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00 216,068 - - 216,068
Borrowings 5.50 350,487 350,487 - -
Accommodation Bonds 0.00 3,894,906 - - 3,894,906
Total Financial Liabilities 4,461,461 350,487 - 4,110,974

Other Price Risk
The Health Service is exposed to insignificant other price risk 

Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis

 - A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 6%;
 - A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in inflation rate from year-end rates of 2% .

Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through the Health Service's interest bearing assets and liabilities.  The Health Service currently has no interest 
bearing liabilities and is unlikely to have any into the future as interest bearing liabilities can only be entered into with the approval of the Department of Treasury and 
Finance. 
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  The Health Service 
has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks through its cash and term deposits that are at a floating rate.
The Health Service manages this risk by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments with relatively even maturity profiles, with only 
insignificant amounts of financial instruments at floating rate. Management has concluded for cash at bank and bank overdraft, as financial assets that can be left at 
floating rate without necessarily exposing the Health Service to significant bad risk, management monitors movement in interest rates on a daily basis.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Health Service's financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to 
individual notes to the financial statements.

Maturity Dates

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial markets, the Health 
Service believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Australia)

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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NOTE 17:   Financial Instruments (continued)

Consolidated
Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2016 $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (i) 2,308,529 (23,085) (23,085) 23,085 23,085
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 607,118 - - - -
 - Other Receivables 77,965 - - - -
Other Financial Assets 1,925,856 (19,259) (19,259) 19,259 19,259
Total Financial Assets 4,919,468 (42,344) (42,344) 42,344 42,344
Financial Liabilities
Payables 761,417 - - - -
Borrowings 273,178 2,732 2,732 (2,732) (2,732)
Accommodation Bonds 4,947,422 - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 5,982,017 2,732 2,732 (2,732) (2,732)

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,083,533 (10,835) (10,835) 10,835 10,835
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 89,149 - - - -
 - Other Receivables 81,181 - - - -
Other Financial Assets 1,878,285 (18,783) (18,783) 18,783 18,783
Total Financial Assets 3,132,148 (29,618) (29,618) 29,618 29,618
Financial Liabilities
Payables 216,068 - - - -
Borrowings 350,487 3,505 3,505 (3,505) (3,505)
Accommodation Bonds 3,894,906 - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 4,461,461 3,505 3,505 (3,505) (3,505)
(i) eg. Sensitivity of cash and cash equivalents to a 1+% movement in interest rates; ($2,308,529* 0.07) - ($2,308,529*0.06) = $23,085.  Similar for a -1%
movement in interest rate, impact = -$23,085

(f) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:

NOTE 18:   Commitments for Expenditure Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

Operating Lease commitments $ $

Not longer than one year 207,535 58,155
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 72,978 75,747
Total Operating Lease commitments 280,513 133,902

Finance Lease commitments
Share of SWARH finance lease commitments
Not longer than one year 127,584 136,820
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 161,494 240,620
Minimum Lease Payments 289,078 377,440
Less Future Finance Charges 15,900 26,152
Total Finance Lease commitments 273,178 351,288
Total Lease Commitments 553,691 485,190

Capital Expenditure Commitments
There are no commitments for capital expenditure for the Hesse Rural Health Service. 

NOTE 19:   Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Hesse Rural Health Service has provided a financial guarantee of $100,000 in relation to payroll services.

-1%

Operating leases relate to motor vehicles used for primarily for district nursing services provided by the Health Service with 
the lease terms of three to five years, photocopiers with lease terms of 5 years, and rental of a property for the delivery of 
community health services in Moriac with lease term of 5 years:

Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market 
prices;

Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market 
inputs.

+1%

The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of variable rate financial instruments held by the Health Service at year end 
as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant interest rate risk occur

The Health service considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values, 
because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.

Interest Rate Risk

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 18: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

NOTE 19: CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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NOTE 20: Operating Segments
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
REVENUE
External Segment Revenue 3,120,706 3,094,540 5,250,263 5,680,577 1,746,158 1,599,920 10,117,127 10,375,037
Total Revenue 3,120,706 3,094,540 5,250,263 5,680,577 1,746,158 1,599,920 10,117,127 10,375,037
EXPENSES
External Segment expense 3,365,915 3,169,000 5,496,384 5,429,471 1,948,401 1,912,180 10,810,700 10,510,650
Total Expenses 3,365,915 3,169,000 5,496,384 5,429,471 1,948,401 1,912,180 10,810,700 10,510,650
Net Result from Ordinary Activities (245,209) (74,460) (246,121) 251,106 (202,243) (312,259) (693,573) (135,613)
Interest Income 12,359 4,123 79,414 69,625 - 3,950 91,773 77,698
Share of net result of Joint Ventures 
using the Equity Method (4,853) (5,255) - - - - (4,853) (5,255)
Net Result for the year (237,703) (75,592) (166,707) 320,731 (202,243) (308,309) (606,653) (63,169)

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 6,152,240 5,643,215 11,322,695 10,538,774 945,737 1,023,967 18,420,672 17,205,956
Total Assets 6,152,240 5,643,215 11,322,695 10,538,774 945,737 1,023,967 18,420,672 17,205,956
Segment Liabilities 1,577,454 1,120,380 6,449,288 5,102,239 390,102 379,248 8,416,845 6,601,867
Total Liabilities 1,577,454 1,120,380 6,449,288 5,102,239 390,102 379,248 8,416,845 6,601,867

(9,068) (4,215) - - - - (9,068) (4,215)
Acquisition of Property Plant & Equipment 190,997 190,997 182,880 804,666 18,946 18,946 392,823 1,014,609
Depreciation 672,061 647,638 309,412 308,903 - - 981,473 956,541

The major products/services from which the above segments derive revenue are:

Business Segments Services
Hospital Acute Care
RACS Residential Aged Care - both high and low level care
Community Health Primary Health and HACC services including district nursing. 

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
The Hesse Rural Health Service operates predominantly in Winchelsea, Victoria. More than 90% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities 
and segment assets relate to operations in Winchelsea, Victoria.

NOTE 21:  Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets
Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations Principal Activity 2016 2015

% %
South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) Information Technology 3.83% 3.83%

2016 2015
Current Assets $ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents 78,862 76,307
Receivables 564,414 72,373
Other Assets 13,586 1,347
Total Current Assets 656,861 150,027
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 281,619 359,777
Total Assets 938,480 509,804

Current Liabilities
Payables 563,849 63,026
Finance lease liabilities 115,691 121,520
Employee Benefits 67,987 61,359
Total Current Liabilities 747,527 245,905
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 157,487 228,967
Employee Benefits 13,278 15,211
Total Non Current Liabilities 170,765 244,178
Total Liabilities 918,292 490,083
Net Assets 20,188 19,721

Revenues
Revenue from Operating Activities 933,854 790,013
Total Revenue 933,854 790,013

Expenses
Employee Benefits 254,476 222,359
Maintenance Contract and IT Support 491,191 381,533
Operating Lease Costs - -
Other Expenses from Ordinary Activities 27,714 43,665
Finance Costs 17,299 18,482
Depreciation 142,706 123,607
Total Expenses 933,386 789,646
Net Result 468 367

The Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below, based on 
unaudited figures:

Hospital RACS

Ownership Interest

Consolidated

Investment in Associates and Joint Venture 
Partnership

The Health Service interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below. The 
amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Community Health
NOTE 20: OPERATING SEGMENTS

NOTE 21: JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS
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NOTE 22a:   Responsible Persons Disclosures

From To
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing, Minister for Mental Health 1/07/2015 30/06/2016

Governing Board
J. Carr 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
N. Hutton 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
N. Stinchcombe 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
K. Leigh 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
P. Benton 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
D. Kelly 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
D. Lang 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
R. Hanson 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
K. Taylor 1/07/2015 30/06/2016
S. Lewis 8/03/2016 30/06/2016
M. Stocks 1/07/2015 30/06/2016

Accountable Officers
P. Birkett 1/07/2015 30/06/2016

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible persons are shown in their relevant income bands; Consol'd Consol'd

2016 2015
Income Band
$0 - $9,999 11 10
$210,000 - $210,999 1 1
Total Numbers 12 11

$211,817 $216,455

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Entities

NOTE 22b:   Executive Officer Disclosures

2016 2015 2016 2015
No. No. No. No.

$110,000 - $119,999 1 - 1 -
$130,000 - $139,999 - 1 - 1
$140,000 - $149,999 1 - 1 -
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (i) 2 1 2 1
Total Remuneration 261,926$ 137,044$ 261,926$ 137,044$

(i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52 weeks for a reporting period.

NOTE 23:   Remuneration of Auditors Consol'd Consol'd
2016 2015

Victorian Auditor-General's Office $ $
Audit or review of financial statement 29,400 32,925

29,400 32,925

NOTE 24:   Controlled Entities
Equity

Name of Entity Country of Incorporation Holding
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Inc. 100%

Control is established due to both entities having common Board of Management

NOTE 25:  Events Occurring after the Balance Date
There are no events occurring since the balance date to the date of this report that would have a material effect on the operations
of the Health Service.

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following 
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Amounts relating to Repsonsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.  For information regarding related party 
transactions of ministers, the register of members' interests is publicly available from: www.parliament.vic.gov.au/publications/register of interests.

Total Remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the 
reporting entity amounted to:

Australia

Base Remuneration

The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two 
columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is 
exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.

Total Remuneration
Consolidated

The chief financial officer, Stephen Wight, is a director of Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants, which provided accounting, bookkeeping and consulting 
services to Hesse Rural Health Service on normal commercial terms and conditions.  Total payments made to Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants in the 
financial year were $100,449 (2015 $76,070).

Period

NOTE 22a: RESPONSIBLE PERSONS DISCLOSURES

NOTE 22b: EXECUTIVE OFFICER DISCLOSURES

NOTE 23: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

NOTE 24: CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTE 25: EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE DATE
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The Hesse Rural Health Annual Report includes an Operational, Financial and Quality of Care Report. The publication is 
internally produced and designed, and reflects real stories provided by our staff, clients and their families.

The report is available in hard copy or on Hesse’s website.   www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

The Report aims to inform consumers, patients, residents, clients, their carers, families, government, interested 
stakeholders and members of the public about the range and quality of our services and Hesse Rural Health’s financial 
performance over the year.

We welcome your feedback on this Report. Please answer the following questions, cut along the dotted line and return 
to the health service using reply paid 84569.

Please circle the answer which best fits your opinion:

Q1. I am a:
a) Consumer (patient, client or aged resident) of the health service
b) Family member, carer or consumer advocate
c) Hesse Rural Health employee, volunteer or Board member
d) Representative of government
e) Other health professional, partner, contractor or stakeholder
f) Interested member of the public

Q2. After reading this Report I have a good understanding of Hesse Rural Health and the SERVICE it delivers.

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Q3. After reading the Quality of Care section in this report, I have a good understanding of the QUALITY level 
of services provided by Hesse Rural Health. 

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Q4. What did you like MOST about this  Report?

Q5. What did you like LEAST about this Report?

Q6. Please list any SUGGESTIONS for inclusion in the 2017 Annual Report?

Q7. Please include any other COMMENTS about this Report?

Thank you for assisting Hesse Rural Health as we strive for continued improvement in the quality and range of our 
services and in how we communicate them to you.

Peter Birkett
Chief Executive Officer

Please Give Us Feedback
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Would You Like to make a Donation?

Hesse Rural Health greatly appreciates 
the help received from our community. 
Financial donations assist in the provision 
of high quality health, community and 
aged care services. 

All donations are tax deductible and 
donors will be acknowledged in the 
organisational Annual Report. (see page 
28)

$ ____________.00 enclosed

Would you like a receipt?   Yes  /  No

Contact Details: 

Signature: ____________________

Cheque
Please make your cheque payable to:
Hesse Rural Health
8 Gosney Street
Winchelsea VIC 3241

Direct Deposit
Account Name: 
BSB Number: 
Account Number:
Reference: 

Hesse Rural Health
633 000
1211 20018
[your name] + ‘donation’

Credit Card
Name: (please print) _______________________________
Please Circle:   VISA    /    MASTERCARD
Expiry:  ____/____

‘I recently participated 
in Telehealth and 
I think it’s a great 
idea and is important 
for country people 
to have access to 
specialist care without 
the difficulties of long 
distance travel .... 
thanks for a great job.’

‘On behalf of CFA & the Winchelsea Brigade 
I thank Hesse Rural Health for their attentive 
and generous support by providing a ‘rare’ and 
valuable opportunity to the CFA to access a venue 
[52 Main Street, Winchelsea] that provides as 
close to a ‘real life’ experience as any trainee will 
experience.’

‘Thank you for taking such good care of my father over 
the past year. Very grateful for help and support during 
this time. Cannot praise the Winchelsea Hospital enough. 
Annie Coles was so supportive, you gave me hope. For 
those that know about the place they are the lucky ones.’

‘We cannot thank 
staff enough for 
the kind and loving 
care, not only to our 
father but also our 
family. Support and 
sympathy received 
helped us survive 
those difficult days. 
Although very sad it 
was a beautiful and 
special time for us all.’

‘Thank you kindly 
to all staff of Hesse 
Rural Health who have 
allowed me to further 
develop my nursing 
skills. I wish you all a 
happy future.’

‘The staff at Hesse were very friendly and efficient. Most of the 
girls gave a phone call and this was greatly appreciated as I 
could make sure dogs etc. were out of the way before their 
arrival. The home nursing service is a wonderful service and 
I could highly recommend it to everyone. Many thanks for the 
kindness and help.’

‘This [Hesse Rural Health 2015 Annual Report] is an outstanding publication. The 
design is engaging, the photography is eye catching and it tells a positive story 
about health services in rural communities.’ 
Mike Wallace, Chief Operating Officer, Aus. Commission on Safety & Quality in Health Care
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Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating access to best practice health, aged and 
community based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

Our Mission

Caring for Rural Communities.

Hesse Rural Health (Hesse) is a public health service, operating under the Health Services 
Act 1988 and governed by a volunteer Board of Management who are appointed by the 
Victorian State Minister for Health. Hesse is a key integrated rural health care service providing 
acute, aged and community based services across parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, 
Golden Plains and the Surf Coast Shires.

Hesse operates in partnership with the Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a 
not for profit entity whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop rural aged care services 
for the local community.

Our Vision

Hesse Rural Health

Inclusiveness  ~ Welcoming Everyone
Integrity  ~ Accountable, Transparent Practice
Excellence  ~ Committed to Being the Best We Can
Creativity  ~ Leading into the Future
Person Centred  ~ Finding What’s Important to the Individual

Our Values

Acute Care
Breakfast Club
Bus to the Hub
Community Nursing
Dementia Care
Diabetes Education
Dietetics
District Nursing
Exercise Groups
Facilitated Play Group
Farm Safety Program
Greet, Eat & Meet
Health Promotion

Home Care Packages
Hospital in the Home
Immunisation Program
Men’s Group
Men’s Shed Program
Nesters Group
No Fall Exercise Program
Occasional Care
Occupational Therapy
Palliative Care
Personal Development
Physiotherapy
Planned Activity Groups 

Podiatry
Post Acute Care
Post Natal Care
Pre-School Health 
Residential Aged Care 
Respite
Urgent Care
Volunteering
Walking Groups
Well Women’s Clinic
Yoga

To access Hesse’s broad range of
services contact Administration via:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200
Mail:      8 Gosney Street
     Winchelsea VIC 3241
E-mail:    hesse@swarh.vic.gov.au
Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

Our Services Contact Us



2
0
1
6

Hesse Rural Health

Caring for Rural Communities

Annual Report

Winchelsea, Australia


